
 

 
 
 
 
 
Central Bedfordshire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ  

  
  

please ask for Sandra Hobbs 
direct line 0300 300 5257 

date 9 October 2009 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

 

CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE SCHOOLS FORUM 
 

 
Date & Time 

Monday, 19 October 2009 at 6.00 p.m. 
 
 

Please note:  a light buffet will be provided from 5.30 p.m. 
 

Venue at 
Room 14, Priory House, Monks Walk, Chicksands, 

Shefford, SG17 5TQ 
 
 

 
Edwina Grant 
Acting Chief Executive/ 
Deputy Chief Executive &  
Director of Children, 
Families & Learning 

 
To:     The Chairman and Members of the CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE SCHOOLS 
 FORUM: 
  

School 
Members: 

Anne Bell, Headteacher, Willow Nursery School  
Neil Bramwell, Headteacher, Stratton Upper School 
Shirley-Anne Crosbie, Headteacher, Glenwood Special 
School 
Malcolm Griffiths, Governor, Eaton Bray Lower School 
Richard Holland, Governor, Harlington Upper School 
Sue Howley, Governor, Greenleas Lower School 
Sharon Ingham, Headteacher, Hadrian Lower School 
Ian Mitchell, Headteacher, Etonbury Middle School 
Jim Parker, Headteacher, Manshead Upper School 
Ray Payne, Headteacher, Henlow Middle School 
Jim Smart, Headteacher, Shelton Lower School 
  



Non-School 
Members: 

Ian Greenley, Church of England Diocese Representative  
Bill Hamilton, Roman Catholic Diocese Representative 
Caroll Leggatt, PVI Early Years Providers Representative 
Bill McCarthy, Teacher's Union Representative 
Chris Vesey, 14-19 Partnership Sector Representative 
 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 

    
No. 
 

Item Lead Person Time 

1.   Apologies for Absence Chairman 18:00 
  
2.   Minutes of 28 September 2009 and 

Matters Arising – To follow 
Chairman 18:05 

  

3.   Surplus Balances Dawn Hill, Finance 
Manager – Schools 

18:15 

  
4.   Early Years Single Funding Formula Bob Thompson, Early 

Years Consultant 
18:25 

  
5.   Use of Harnessing Technology 

Funding to Support Transition to Web 
Based MIS in Schools - Additional 
Information 

Cathy Piotrowski, 
ICT/MIS, Learning & 
Support 

18:45 

  
6.   Membership of the Schools Forum – 

Oral Update 
Rob Mills, Committee 
Services Manager 

19:00 

  
7.   Date of Next Meeting Chairman 19:10 
  

The date of the next meeting is scheduled for Monday 25 January 2010. 
 

8.   Close Chairman 19:15 
  



 
 
Meeting: Schools Forum 

Date: 19 October 2009 

Subject: Surplus Balances  

Report of: Acting Chief Executive/Deputy Chief Executive and Director of 
Children, Families and Learning 
 

Summary: To present the recommendations from the Surplus Balance Sub Group. 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Dawn Hill, Borough Hall, Bedford 

Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Council 

Reason for urgency 
(if appropriate) 

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. 
 
 
 
2. 
 
 

To accept the recommendation from the Sub Group that sufficient 
documentation has been presented in support of the surplus balances for 
14 out of the 15 schools and therefore no claw back proposed. 
 
That the remaining school’s surplus balance not be clawed back subject to 
an additional clause stating that the use being directed at the proposed 
Capital Project.  

 
 
Background 
 
1. The Scheme for Financing Schools, Section 4, details the treatment of surplus 

balances arising in relation to budget shares (Appendix A).  
Where schools have a surplus balance that exceeds the prescribed thresholds, 
the Governing Body are required to put in place a financial plan to reduce the 
surplus to below the threshold.   The plan is reviewed and agreed by the Sub 
Group of the Schools Forum each year and monitored to ensure such surpluses 
are used appropriately for the benefit of the school.  However, If the Sub Group 
is minded to believe that a school is not retaining the balance for appropriate 
reasons, then a process will be started to recycle the funds in excess of the 
threshold. 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 1



2. Members of the Surplus Balance Sub Group: 
 
Shirley Anne Crosbie, Headteacher, Glenwood Special 
Ian Greenley, Church of England Diocese Representative 
Malcolm Griffiths, Governor, Eaton Bray Lower  
Richard Holland, Governor, Harlington Upper  
Jim Smart, Headteacher, Shelton Lower 
 

3. The Surplus Balance Sub Group met on the 10 June and 26 June 2009 where 
46 out of the 139 Central Bedfordshire Schools balances were presented as 
being above the agreed thresholds. 
 

4. Following an update on Surplus Balances at the Schools Forum meeting held 
on 28 September, it was resolved: 
 
• that the 27 schools exceeding the allowed surplus balance as per the 

Scheme for Financing Schools be allowed the additional allowance of 
£10,000 or 1%  and therefore permitted to retain their surplus balance; 

 
• that the four schools where the Sub Group accepted the information 

supplied be permitted to retain their balance; and 
 

• that the remaining 15 schools with ‘minded to’ claw back 
recommendation be subject to an appeals meeting on 1 October 2009. 

 
Appeals meeting – 1 October (Minutes – Appendix B) 
 
5. 15 schools were subject to review, having received a full compliment of 

further information.  The information that had been requested can be put 
under three broad headings: 
 
(i) clarification of Capital Projects and use of Devolved Formula Capital 

ahead of Revenue contribution; 
 
(ii) five year budget plans revised to reflect balanced budget or reduction 

in surplus; and 
 
(iii) confirmation of attendance at year end training courses. 
 

6. The information provided was of a higher standard than in previous years which 
suggested that the process is of value to the schools.  The request for revised 
budget plans for the five year period has helped direct the schools attention to 
possible future concerns. 
 

7. One sub group member was present and therefore agreement of the 
recommendations from the remainder of the sub group was received via e-mail.  
One group member requested to abstain from one of the recommendations due 
to conflict of interest. 
 

 
Appendices: 

 
Appendix A – Extract from Scheme for Financing Schools (Sept 2009 – March 2011) 
Appendix B – Minutes from Surplus Balance Sub Group of 1 October 2009 

Agenda Item 3
Page 2



         Appendix A 
 

Extract Scheme for Financing Schools  
(September 2009 – March 2011) 

 
 

4.   THE TREATMENT OF SURPLUSES AND DEFICIT BALANCES 
ARISING IN RELATION TO BUDGET SHARES 
 

4.1.  The Right to Carry Forward Surplus Balances 
 
Schools may carry forward from one financial year to the next any 
surplus/deficit in net expenditure relative to the school's budget share for 
the year plus/minus any balance brought forward from the previous year.  

  
4.2 Reporting On The Intended Use Of Surplus Balances 
 

Surplus balances held by schools as permitted under this scheme are 
subject to the following restrictions with effect from 1 April 2008:  

 
a. the Authority shall calculate by 31 May each year the surplus 

balance, if any, held by each school as at the preceding 31 March. 
For this purpose the balance will be the recurrent balance as 
defined in the Consistent Financial Reporting Framework; 

 
b. the Authority shall deduct from the calculated balance any amounts 

for which the school has a prior year commitment to pay from the 
surplus balance and any unspent Standards Fund grant for the 
previous financial year; 

 
c. the Authority shall then deduct from the resulting sum any amounts 

which the governing body of the school has declared to be assigned 
for specific purposes permitted by the authority, and which the 
authority is satisfied are properly assigned. To count as properly 
assigned, amounts must not be retained beyond the period 
stipulated for the purpose in question, without the consent of the 
Authority. In considering whether any sums are properly assigned 
the Authority may also take into account any previously declared 
assignment of such sums but may not take any change in planned 
assignments to be the sole reason for considering that a sum is not 
properly assigned. 

 
d. if the result of steps a-c is a sum greater than 5% of the current  
 year's budget share for secondary schools, 8% for primary and 

special schools, or £10,000 (where that is greater than either 
percentage threshold), then the Authority shall deduct from the  

 current year's budget share an amount equal to the excess, subject 
to the review by the Sub Group of the Schools Forum, set out 
below. 

 

Agenda Item 3
Page 3



Funds deriving from sources other than the Authority will be taken into 
account in this calculation if paid into the budget share account of the 
school, whether under provisions in this scheme or otherwise. 
 
Funds held in relation to a school's exercise of powers under s.27 of the 
Education Act 2002 (community facilities) will not be taken into account 
unless added to the budget share surplus by the school as permitted by 
the Authority.  
 
The total of any amounts deducted from schools' budget shares by the 
Authority under this provision are to be applied to the Schools Budget of 
the authority. 
 
To assist the LA in carrying out its financial monitoring role, Governing 
bodies are required to report to the LA on the use which the school 
intends to make of surplus balances – after taking account of any 
earmarked funds, as per the annual CFR return - in cases where the 
total balance exceeds the threshold’s set out in d. above. 
 
Where schools have a surplus balance that exceeds the above 
thresholds of the School’s Budget Share at the financial year end, the 
Governing Body are required to put in place a financial plan to reduce 
the surplus to below the threshold.    
 
The plan will be reviewed and agreed by a Sub Group of the Schools 
Forum, each year and monitored to ensure such surpluses are used 
appropriately for the benefit of the school. 
 
If the Sub Group of the Schools Forum is minded to believe that a school 
is not retaining the balance for appropriate reasons, then a process will 
be started to recycle the funds in excess of the threshold. 

The calculation of the excess balance will be notified by a letter in the 
format of Appendix D1, Schools will also be required to complete the 
Declaration of Earmarked Funds and Surplus Balances(appendix D2), 
which must be submitted to the LA and supported by relevant evidence..  
 
Relevant evidence must support B02 Uncommitted Revenue Balances 
and be in written form and may comprise of:- 
 
Finance Governors Minutes 
Three year plans 
Projected Pupil Numbers 
Correspondence with Contractors 
Any other relevant information 

Agenda Item 3
Page 4



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B
 

M
in
ut
es
  

 O
ut
lin
e 
 

 T
o 
di
sc
us
s 
th
e 
15

 re
m
ai
ni
ng
 s
ch
oo
ls
 w
ith

 ‘m
in
de
d 
to
’ c

la
w
 b
ac
k 
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio

ns
 fo

llo
w
in
g 
th
e 
re
vi
ew

 o
f e

xc
es
s 
su
rp
lu
s 
ba
la
nc
es
 w
ith

 th
e 
Sc
ho

ol
s 

Fo
ru
m
. 

  
S
U
M
M
A
R
Y
 O
F
 R
E
C
O
M
M
E
N
D
A
T
IO
N
S
 

 

Sc
ho
ol
 

P
ot
en
ti
al
 

cl
aw
 - 
ba
ck
 

D
oc
um

en
ta
ti
on
 r
eq
ue
st
ed
 

D
oc
um

en
ta
ti
on
 P
ro
vi
de
d 

R
ec
om

m
en
da
ti
on
 

W
ill
ow
 N
ur
se
ry
  

£1
,0
63

 
Fu

rt
he
r c

la
ri
fi
ca
tio

n 
on

 c
ap
ita

l p
ro
je
ct
s 
an
d 
an
 

as
su
ra
nc
e 
th
at
 D
ev
ol
ve
d 
Fo

rm
ul
a 
C
ap
ita

l f
or
 

08
/0
9 
an
d 
09
/1
0 
is
 fu

lly
 u
til
is
ed
  

C
on
fi
rm

at
io
n 
re
ce
iv
ed
 o
ut
lin

in
g 
pr
oj
ec
ts
 

an
d 
co
st
in
gs
 w
ith

 a
n 
as
su
ra
nc
e 
th
at
 D
FC

 
fu
lly

 u
til
is
ed

 
 

N
o 
C
la
w
 b
ac
k 

D
ov
er
 D
ow
n 

L
ow
er
  

£2
8,
92
9 

Fu
rt
he
r c

la
ri
fi
ca
tio

n 
on

 c
ap
ita

l p
ro
je
ct
s 
an
d 
an
 

as
su
ra
nc
e 
th
at
 D
ev
ol
ve
d 
Fo

rm
ul
a 
C
ap
ita

l f
or
 

08
/0
9 
an
d 
09
/1
0 
is
 fu

lly
 u
til
is
ed
  

In
vo
ic
es
 p
ro
vi
de
d 
ex
ce
ed
in
g 
th
e 
va
lu
e 
of
 

D
FC

 b
ro
ug

ht
 fo

rw
ar
d 
an
d 
09
/1
0 

al
lo
ca
tio

n.
 R
ev
en
ue
 c
on

tr
ib
ut
io
n 
re
qu
ir
ed
. 

N
o 
C
la
w
 b
ac
k 

T
it
le
 o
f M

ee
ti
ng
  

Su
rp
lu
s 
B
al
an
ce
 G
ro
up
  

D
at
e 
of
 M
ee
ti
ng
  

W
ed
ne
sd
ay
 0
1s

t  O
ct
ob
er
 2
00
9 
 

P
re
se
nt
  

Ia
n 
G
re
en
le
y 
– 
 N
on

 S
ch
oo
ls
 M

em
be
r /
 C
E
 D
io
ce
se
 

D
aw

n 
H
ill
 –
 F
in
an
ce
 M

an
ag
er
 - 
Sc
ho

ol
s 

Sa
ra
h 
St
al
la
rd
 –
  F

in
an
ce
 A
ss
is
ta
nt
  

A
po
lo
gi
es
  

Ji
m
 S
ta
rt
 –
 H
ea
d 
of
 S
he
lto

n 
Lo

w
er
 

M
al
co
m
 G
ri
ff
ith

s 
– 
G
ov

er
no

r o
f E

at
on

 B
ra
y 
 

Sh
ir
le
y 
C
ro
sb
ie
 –
 H
ea
d 
of
 G
le
nw

oo
d 
Sp

ec
ia
l  

R
ic
ha
rd
 H
ol
la
nd

 –
 G
ov

er
no

r o
f H

ar
lin

gt
on

 U
pp

er
  

Agenda Item 3
Page 5



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B
 

K
in
gs
m
oo
r 
L
ow
er
  

£5
,3
52

  
R
ev
is
ed
 fi
ve
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t s
ho
w
in
g 
th
e 
sc
ho
ol
 

in
 b
al
an
ce
.  
C
ur
re
nt
 p
ro
je
ct
io
n 
re
fl
ec
ts
 d
ef
ic
it 

w
ith

 n
o 
re
co
ve
ry
. 

R
ev
is
ed
 fi
ve
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t r
ef
le
ct
in
g 
a 

ba
la
nc
ed
 b
ud

ge
t. 
 S
ur
pl
us
 re

qu
ir
ed
 to

 
av
oi
d 
a 
de
fi
ci
t a
pp

lic
at
io
n.
 

 

N
o 
C
la
w
 b
ac
k 

So
ut
hi
ll 
L
ow
er
  

£ 
11

,5
09

  
R
ev
is
ed
 fi
ve
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t s
ho
w
in
g 
th
e 
sc
ho
ol
 

in
 b
al
an
ce
.  
C
ur
re
nt
 p
ro
je
ct
io
n 
is
 u
nk
no
w
n 
as
 

th
e 
do
cu
m
en
ta
tio

n 
co
nt
ai
ne
d 
er
ro
rs
. 

C
on

fi
rm

at
io
n 
of
 a
tte

nd
an
ce
 a
t y

ea
r e

nd
 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 c
ou

rs
e 

R
ev
is
ed
 fi
ve
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t r
ef
le
ct
in
g 
a 

ba
la
nc
ed
 b
ud

ge
t. 
 T
he
 s
ch
oo
l h

av
e 
ag
re
ed
 

to
 a
tte

nd
 y
ea
r e

nd
 tr
ai
ni
ng
.  

 

N
o 
C
la
w
 b
ac
k 

T
it
he
 F
ar
m
 L
ow
er
  

£4
26

 
A
gr
ee
m
en
t t
o 
at
te
nd

an
ce
 a
t t
he
 y
ea
r e

nd
 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 c
ou

rs
e.
 

C
ur
re
nt
 s
ta
ff
in
g 
is
su
es
, h

av
e 
pu

rc
ha
se
d 

ad
di
tio

na
l b

ur
sa
ry
 s
up
po

rt
 to

 e
ns
ur
e 
ye
ar
 

en
d 
is
 p
ro
ce
ss
ed
 a
cc
ur
at
el
y 

 

N
o 
C
la
w
 b
ac
k 

E
at
on
 B
ra
y 
L
ow
er
  

£8
,4
06

 
M
or
e 
de
ta
ile

d 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
re
ga
rd
in
g 
th
e 
ne
w
 

ac
co
m
m
od
at
io
n 
in
cl
ud

in
g 
th
e 
pl
an
s 
fo
r 

co
ns
tr
uc
tio

n,
 e
st
im

at
ed
 c
os
ts
, h

ow
 th

e 
bu

ild
in
g 
is
 to

 b
e 
fu
nd
ed
 a
nd
 ti
m
es
ca
le
s.
 

N
o 
co
st
in
gs
 o
r b

re
ak
do

w
n 
of
 fu

nd
in
g 

pr
ov
id
ed
.  
 

N
ot
e:
 P
la
nn
in
g 
Pe
rm

is
si
on
 g
ra
nt
ed
 

A
ug
us
t 2

00
9.
 D
ev
ol
ve
d 
Fo

rm
ul
a 
C
ap
ita

l 
fu
lly

 u
til
is
ed
 0
9/
10
 a
nd

 p
ar
t 1

0/
11
. 

 2n
d  O
ct
ob
er
 - 
F
ur
th
er
 e
vi
de
nc
e 
pr
ov
id
ed
 

vi
a 
em
ai
l, 
pu
pi
l n
um
be
rs
, a
nt
ic
ip
at
ed
 

co
st
in
gs
 a
nd
 b
ud
ge
t i
m
pl
ic
at
io
ns
 

C
la
w
 b
ac
k 
su
bj
ec
t 

to
 re

ce
ip
t o

f 
co
st
in
gs
 a
nd
 b
re
ak
 

do
w
n 
of
 fu

nd
in
g 
by

 
Fr
id
ay
 2

nd
 O
ct
ob
er
. 

A
gr
ee
d 
vi
a 
em
ai
l t
o 

ac
ce
pt
 a
dd
iti
on
al
 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n 

pr
ov
id
ed
 a
nd
 

R
ec
om
m
en
d 
N
o 

cl
aw
 b
ac
k 
su
bj
ec
t 

to
 u
se
 fo
r 
C
ap
ita
l 

pr
oj
ec
t 

G
ot
hi
c 
M
ed
e 

L
ow
er
  

£2
1,
70
0 
 
R
ev
is
ed
 fi
ve
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t s
ho
w
in
g 
th
e 
sc
ho
ol
 

in
 b
al
an
ce
.  
C
ur
re
nt
 p
ro
je
ct
io
n 
re
fl
ec
ts
 d
ef
ic
it 

w
ith

 n
o 
re
co
ve
ry
. 

R
ev
is
ed
 fi
ve
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t r
ef
le
ct
in
g 
a 

ba
la
nc
ed
 b
ud

ge
t. 
 S
ur
pl
us
 re

qu
ir
ed
 to

 
av
oi
d 
a 
de
fi
ci
t a
pp

lic
at
io
n.
 

 

N
o 
C
la
w
 b
ac
k 

M
au
ld
en
 L
ow
er
  

£1
,3
77

 
R
ev
is
ed
 fi
ve
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t s
ho
w
in
g 
th
e 
sc
ho
ol
 

in
 b
al
an
ce
.  
C
ur
re
nt
 p
ro
je
ct
io
n 
re
fl
ec
ts
 d
ef
ic
it 

w
ith

 n
o 
re
co
ve
ry
  

R
ev
is
ed
 fi
ve
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t s
ub
m
itt
ed
.  
A
 

pr
ov
is
io
na
l L

ic
en
se
d 
D
ef
ic
it 
w
ill
 b
e 

re
qu
ir
ed
 fo

r 1
0/
11
 w
ith

 re
co
ve
ry
 in

 1
3/
14

 
ba
se
d 
on
 c
ur
re
nt
 p
up
il 
nu
m
be
rs
. 

N
o 
C
la
w
 b
ac
k 

M
og
ge
rh
an
ge
r 

L
ow
er
  

£9
,8
08

  
R
ev
is
ed
 fi
ve
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t s
ho
w
in
g 
th
e 
sc
ho
ol
 

in
 b
al
an
ce
.  
C
ur
re
nt
 p
ro
je
ct
io
n 
re
fl
ec
ts
 d
ef
ic
it 

w
ith

 n
o 
re
co
ve
ry
  

R
ev
is
ed
 fi
ve
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t r
ef
le
ct
in
g 
a 

ba
la
nc
ed
 b
ud

ge
t. 
 S
ur
pl
us
 re

qu
ir
ed
 to

 
av
oi
d 
a 
de
fi
ci
t a
pp

lic
at
io
n.
  F

al
lin

g 
pu
pi
l 

N
o 
C
la
w
 b
ac
k 

Agenda Item 3
Page 6



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 B
 

nu
m
be
rs
. 

St
 G
eo
rg
es
 L
ow
er
  

£2
,7
65

 
R
ev
is
ed
 fi
ve
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t r
ef
le
ct
in
g 
a 

re
du

ct
io
n 
in
 s
ur
pl
us
.  
C
ur
re
nt
 p
ro
je
ct
io
n 

re
fl
ec
t y

ea
r o

n 
ye
ar
 in

cr
ea
se
.  
Sc

ho
ol
 

Fi
na
nc
ia
l A

dv
is
er
 to

 v
is
it 
ea
rl
y 
in
 th

e 
A
ut
um

n 
te
rm

. 

Sc
ho
ol
 F
in
an
ci
al
 A
dv
is
er
 v
is
ite

d 
sc
ho
ol
 

on
 th

e 
16

th
 S
ep
te
m
be
r 2

00
9.
  R

ev
is
ed
 fi
ve
 

ye
ar
 b
ud

ge
t r
ef
le
ct
in
g 
a 
po

ss
ib
le
 d
ef
ic
it 
in
 

11
/1
2 
w
ith

 n
o 
re
co
ve
ry
.  
 

N
o 
C
la
w
 b
ac
k 

St
ud
ha
m
 L
ow
er
  

£2
0,
33
9 

A
 fi
ve
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t a
nd

 c
on
fi
rm

at
io
n 
of
 

E
ar
m
ar
ke
d 
fu
nd
s 
de
cl
ar
ed
 a
t y

ea
r e

nd
. 

 

Fi
ve
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t. 
 S
ur
pl
us
 re

qu
ir
ed
 to

 
av
oi
d 
a 
de
fi
ci
t a
pp

lic
at
io
n.
 

N
o 
C
la
w
 b
ac
k 

H
ol
m
em
ea
d 

M
id
dl
e 
 

£1
3,
94
0 

R
ev
is
ed
 fi
ve
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t s
ho
w
in
g 
th
e 
sc
ho
ol
 

in
 b
al
an
ce
.  
C
ur
re
nt
 p
ro
je
ct
io
n 
re
fl
ec
ts
 d
ef
ic
it 

w
ith

 n
o 
re
co
ve
ry
  

R
ev
is
ed
 fi
ve
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t. 
 L
ic
en
se
 D
ef
ic
it 

w
ou
ld
 b
e 
re
qu
ir
ed
 in

 1
2/
13
. D

ip
 in

 p
up
il 

nu
m
be
rs
 fo

r t
w
o 
ye
ar
 g
ro
up
s.
 

N
o 
C
la
w
 b
ac
k 

P
ri
or
y 
M
id
dl
e 
 

£2
1,
53
9 
 
R
ev
is
ed
 fi
ve
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t s
ho
w
in
g 
th
e 
sc
ho
ol
 

in
 b
al
an
ce
.  
C
ur
re
nt
 p
ro
je
ct
io
n 
re
fl
ec
ts
 d
ef
ic
it 

w
ith

 n
o 
re
co
ve
ry
  

R
ev
is
ed
 fi
ve
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t. 
 L
ic
en
se
 D
ef
ic
it 

w
ou
ld
 b
e 
re
qu
ir
ed
 in

 1
1/
12
. S

IA
 

in
vo
lv
em

en
t. 

N
o 
C
la
w
 b
ac
k 

St
ee
tf
ie
ld
 M
id
dl
e 
 

£1
15

,6
89

  
R
ev
is
ed
 fi
ve
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t s
ho
w
in
g 
th
e 
sc
ho
ol
 

in
 b
al
an
ce
.  
C
ur
re
nt
 p
ro
je
ct
io
n 
re
fl
ec
ts
 d
ef
ic
it 

w
ith

 n
o 
re
co
ve
ry
. S

ch
oo

l F
in
an
ci
al
 A
dv

is
er
 to

 
vi
si
t e
ar
ly
 in

 th
e 
A
ut
um

n 
te
rm

. 

R
ev
is
ed
 fi
ve
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t s
ub
m
itt
ed
.  

• 
Fa
lli
ng
 p
up
il 
ro
ll 

• 
N
ew

 L
ea
rn
in
g 
Fa
ci
lit
y 
fu
nd
s 
se
t 

as
id
e 
fo
r 

• 
D
ep
ri
va
tio

n 
hi
gh
 1
7%

 c
at
eg
or
y 
4 

&
 3
1%

 c
at
eg
or
y 
5 
in
 0
9/
10
 

N
o 
C
la
w
 b
ac
k 

Su
nn
ys
id
e 
Sp
ec
ia
l  

£5
,8
30

  
A
 fi
ve
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t p

la
n.
  O

nl
y 
on
e 
ye
ar
 

su
bm

itt
ed
 fo

r 0
9/
10
 

E
m
ai
l r
ec
ei
ve
d 
fr
om

 C
ha
ir
 o
f G

ov
er
no

rs
 

ci
tin

g 
un
re
as
on
ab
le
 re

qu
es
t i
n 
cu
rr
en
t 

ci
rc
um

st
an
ce
s.
 

E
m
ai
l f
ro
m
 H
el
en
 R
ed
di
ng
 (H

ea
d 
of
 S
E
N
 

an
d 
In
cl
us
io
n,
 C
B
C
) c

on
fi
rm

in
g 

co
ns
ul
ta
tio

n 
cu
rr
en
tly

 b
ei
ng
 c
ar
ri
ed
 o
ut
 a
s 

to
 fu

tu
re
 o
f s
pe
ci
al
 s
ch
oo

ls
 in

 th
is
 a
re
a.
  

D
ue
 to

 im
pl
ic
at
io
ns
 c
on

fi
rm

ed
 d
if
fi
cu
lty

 
in
 s
et
tin

g 
fi
ve
 y
ea
r b

ud
ge
t u

nt
il 
de
ci
si
on

 
ta
ke
n.
 

N
o 
C
la
w
 b
ac
k 

  

Agenda Item 3
Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Meeting: Schools Forum 

Date:  19 October 2009 

Subject: Early Years Single Funding Formula 

Report of: Acting Chief Executive/Deputy Chief Executive and Director of 
Children, Families and Learning 
 

Summary: The Schools Forum to approve the proposed consultation document for 
the Early Years Single Funding Formula (EYSFF). 

 
 
Contact Officer: Bob Thompson 

Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Council 

Reason for urgency 
(if appropriate) 

 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. 
 
 

To discuss and approve the proposed Consultation Document for the 
Early Years Single Funding Formula (EYSFF). 

 
 
Background 

1. Central Bedfordshire Council is required to implement an Early Years Single 
Funding Formula (EYSFF) for all schools and settings making the free early 
years entitlement for 3 and 4 year olds from 1 April 2010.  In order to achieve 
this the following is being undertaken: 

 
 • an initial consultation during the Summer Term 2009 to gain settings’ 

views on the factors/elements which might be included in the EYSFF and 
the possible impact on their settings; 

 
 • construction of a single funding pot for the EYSFF; 

 • the construction of possible formulae and their impact on settings; 

 • the compilation of an EYSFF Consultation Document; and 

Agenda Item 4
Page 9



 • a formal consultation on the formulae options during November. 

The Consultation Document  

2. The proposed Draft Consultation Document is set out at Appendix A. 

 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A – Draft Consultation Document. 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 10



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 2009 
 
 
 

Appendix A 

 
Single Funding Formula 
for Early Years Settings 

(EYSFF) 
 
 

Draft Consultation 
Document  

Agenda Item 4
Page 11



Contents 
 

 Page 
Background 3 
  
Initial Consultation  4 
  
The Funding Pot for the EYSFF 5 
  
The Formulae 5 
  
Elements included in the EYSFF 7 
  
Elements not included in the EYSFF 8 

  
Other Funding Factor Issues 8 
  
Consultation Timetable 9 
  
Glossary 9 
  
Early Years Reference Group 11 
  
Consultation Response 12 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 12



Background 
 
1. The Department for Children, Schools and Families (DCSF) requires all local authorities 

(LAs) to use a single local funding formula (EYSFF) for all providers of the free early 
years entitlement from April 2010.  The purpose of the EYSFF formula is to address 
inconsistencies in how the free entitlement for 3 and 4 year olds is currently funded 
across maintained (nursery and lower schools) and private, voluntary and independent 
(PVI) providers.  It will also support the extension and increased flexibility of the free 
entitlement (FFEE) to 15 hours per week based on children’s participation (uptake of 
hours).  
 

2. The DCSF has been working with eleven pilot LAs who agreed to implement the early 
years single funding formula (EYSFF) a year early (in April 2009) in order to identify the 
issues and provide good practice guidance for other LAs.  The introduction of an EYSFF 
is intended to ensure consistency and fairness in the way that all providers of free 
nursery education and care are funded.  It does not necessarily mean that providers will 
all be funded at the same level, but that the same factors should be taken into account 
when deciding on the level of funding. 

 
3. The work of the pilot LAs informed the interim guidance provided by the DCSF and the 

core principles outlined in that document have now been updated.  The interim guidance 
is available at www.dcsf.gov.uk/everychildmatters/earlyyears .  The development of an 
EYSFF should:  
 
• Support effective and efficient distribution of resources at a local level 

• Facilitate greater flexibility of provision so that parents have greater choice in how 
they use the free entitlement 

• Preserve diversity and choice in the market 

• Provide incentives to improve the quality of provision and recognise ongoing costs 
associated with quality 

• Support the narrowing of achievement gaps and recognise additional costs 
associated with children from deprived backgrounds 

• Be clear and transparent. 
 

4. With regards to the operation of the formula: 

• The same factors should be taken into account when deciding the level of funding for 
each sector 

• Decisions must be transparent and differences between sectors should be justifiable 
and demonstrable 

• The levels of funding should be broadly cost-reflective and all the main cost elements 
should have been considered explicitly 

• There should be no perverse incentives and any change in the formula must not 
endanger sufficiency of provision 

• The formula must be based on common cost information from both the PVI and 
maintained sectors and all costs and public sources of incomes should be considered 
 

• Settings including schools should be funded on the basis of uptake of provision 
(hours attended), not places.  Participation must be counted on a termly basis, at the 
least, and this will be required in regulation 

Agenda Item 4
Page 13



• An additional factor to support sufficiency and sustainability will be allowed but this 
must not be used widely and must have clear criteria 

• The formula must take into account the sustainability of all settings, giving sufficient 
stability to all sectors to plan for the future and improve quality 

• Transition from the current funding mechanism to the future funding mechanism must 
be planned and managed carefully, and based on a clear impact assessment 

• The application of the formula in different settings should be based on common 
operating principles wherever possible.  All aspects of the proposed EYSFF must be 
the result of partnership working with all those involved, and that final decisions on 
structure and operation of the formula should be made only after widespread 
consultation.  
 

5. The EYSFF will operate within the terms of reference set out in the current national 
“Code of Practice on the Provision of Free Nursery Education Places for Three-and-
Four-Year Olds”.  The Code is currently being revised and a new draft will be consulted 
on during the Autumn 2009 prior to implementation in September 2010.  
 

6. The EYSFF does apply to: 

• All eligible three and four year olds attending PVI settings 
• All eligible three and four year olds attending nursery schools 
• 3+ and 3+ headcount children in lower school nursery units and classes 

 
7. The EYSFF does NOT apply to children that have been admitted to the main part of a 

lower school in the Reception Year (4+ headcount and 4+ statutory children).   
 

8. A key finding of the pilot project is the crucial importance of effective partnership working 
and establishing a local team from the outset that includes representatives from 
maintained nursery and lower schools, PVI representatives, local authority early years 
policy leads and schools finance personnel.  
 

9. The Early Years Reference Group which has representation from all these partners will 
be the key consultative and advisory group for the EYSFF.  The Early Years Reference 
Group is a Sub Group of the Schools Forum the decision making body on financial 
matters relating to the early years entitlement, schools and post 16 funding.  

 
Initial Consultation 
 
10. An initial consultation on the EYSFF was undertaken during the Summer Term 2009.  

The purpose of the consultation was to inform schools and settings of the issues, 
elements and funding factors associated with an EYSFF and to use the outcomes to 
inform the development of the EYSFF and the full consultation during the Autumn 2009. 
 

11. Thirty six schools and settings responded to an Initial Consultation on the elements to be 
included in the EYSFF, the outcomes are outlined in Appendix A. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 14



The Funding “Pot” for the EYSFF 
 
12. A total indicative funding “pot” of nearly £7 million has been identified for distribution to 

settings through the EYSFF in the 2010-11 financial year.  The single funding “pot” is 
made up from the following elements: 
• Early years funding for the Private, Voluntary and Independent sector (PVI)  
• Nursery schools budget 
• Lower schools budget: 

o Age Weighted Pupil Unit (AWPU) 3+ children 
o AWPU 3+ headcount children 
o Social deprivation element for 3+ and 3+ headcount children 

• Additional Summer term funding for lower schools for 3+ and 3+ headcount children 
• Insurance funding for 3+ and 3+ headcount children. 
 

13. A notional Special Education Needs (SEN) budget for PVI settings based on 40% of 
Bedfordshire County Council’s 2009-10 SEN budget for the PVI sector has not been 
included in the above total for distribution through the EYSFF as supported by the 
responses to the Initial Consultation. 

 
14. Funding factors in lower schools which are unaffected by the EYSFF include: 

• School meals as this is based on statutory aged children and above 
• Infant Class Size as this is based on children aged 4+ headcount to 6+ 
• Small Schools Protection as it is based on 4+ headcount to 8+ children 
• Personalisation / HILLN as this is based on children aged 5+ to 8+. 

 
The Formulae 
 
15. Four formulae have been developed for consultation purposes and each of these has a 

different impact on schools and settings.  Appendix B sets out: 
• A summary of the impact of each Model A, B, C and D on all settings and the level of 

protection required for nursery and school lower schools.  Appendix B(i) shows the 
impact on total lower school budgets and Appendix B (ii) the impact on the early 
years element of their funding.  Lower schools are divided into two groups, those with 
early years children affected (3+ and 3+ headcount) and those without early years 
children affected (4+ headcount and 4+ statutory).  Both sheets set out: 

o 2009-10 actual and 2010-11 indicative budgets 
o 2010-11 indicative recalculated budget using uptake per hour as opposed to 

the age weighted pupil unit (AWPU) 
o 2010-11 recalculated indicative MFG – shows the amount of support provided 

by the MFG (see paragraph 30) 
o For each of the models – the total funding allocation is indicated, the total 

movement of funding with MFG support and the amount of MFG support. 
(Please note further comments on total movement are shown at the bottom of 
the spreadsheets).  

 
16. It should be noted that the implementation of the different EYSFF options as set out 

below may have a potential impact on choice and availability of places due to 3 and 4 
year old funding in the maintained sector being adversely affected when compared to the 
PVI sector.   
 

17. The starting point for the redistribution of the funding “pot” is the use of £3.60 as the 
base rate.  This is the current hourly rate for the PVI sector. 

 

Agenda Item 4
Page 15



18.  The overall impact of the introduction of any of the EYSFF models will be to move 
funding from the maintained to the PVI sector.  The use of a Social Deprivation factor 
support increases in some PVI settings and the redistribution of funding through Models 
B and D also has a mainly positive impact.  Whilst some lower schools are adversely 
affected, the main impact is on the nursery schools.  If Models C and D are implemented 
it is difficult seeing the nursery schools continuing to operate in their current format. 

 
19. All modelling has been undertaken on actual uptake of children’s hours during 2009-10, 

see below: 
 
Option A  
Base rate 
£3.60 per 
hour x 
hours 
uptake per 
child 

+ Social deprivation 
supplement x average 
hours uptake per child  

+ Nursery 
school lump 
sum 

+ Interim nursery and 
lower school budget 
protection  

A single 
base rate for 
all providers 

 Average hours (12.5 
hours) of number of 
children attending 
setting in three bands 
• Those living in 0-

30% most 
disadvantaged local 
super output areas 
(LSOAs) – 20p 

• 31-60% LSOAs – 
10p 

• 61-100% LSOAs – 
0p. 

 An amount to 
help to cover 
the specific 
costs a 
nursery school 
incurs 

 Full protection to nursery 
and lower schools in 
financial year 2010-11 
provided by MFG, then 
at similar levels reducing 
by one-third in each 
financial year, until there 
is no transitional 
protection from the 
beginning of the 2013-14 
financial year 

 
Option B 
Base rate 
£3.30 per hour 
x hours uptake 
per child 

+ Social deprivation 
supplement x 
average hours 
uptake per child  

+ Other funding 
factors: 
• Lump sum for 

nursery 
schools 

• Lump sum for 
PVI 
administration 

• PVI rent & 
rates 

• NS & PVI 
utility costs 

 

+ Interim nursery 
and lower school 
budget 
protection 

As above but 
lower to 
accommodate 
the distribution 
of funding to 
other funding 
factors 

 As above, Option A  • Lump sum for 
nursery schools 
as above 

• A lump sum for 
PVI 
administration 
based on £100 
for all settings 
plus 10p per 

 As above, Option 
A 

Agenda Item 4
Page 16



hour uptake 
• PVI rent, rates 

and premises 
costs at 10p per 
hour uptake  

• Nursery school 
and PVI utility 
costs at 10p per 
hour uptake. 

 
Option C 
Base rate 
£3.60 per hour 
x hours uptake 
per child 

+ Social deprivation 
supplement x 
average hours 
uptake per child  

+ Interim nursery 
and lower school 
budget protection 
 

As above, 
Option A 

 As above, Option A  As above, Option A 

 
Option D 
Base rate 
£3.30 per hour 
x hours uptake 
per child 

+ Social deprivation 
supplement x 
average hours 
uptake per child  

+ Other funding 
factors: 
• Lump sum for 

PVI 
administration 

• PVI rent & 
rates 

• NS & PVI 
utility costs 

 

+ Interim nursery 
and lower school 
budget 
protection  

As above, 
Option B 

 As above, Option A  As above, Option B 
without nursery 
school lump sum 

 As above, Option 
A 

 
Elements included in the Funding Formulae  
 
20. All four funding formulae use a fixed base rate with an additional Social Deprivation 

Supplement.  The Social Deprivation Supplement is supported by a clear majority of 
schools and settings in the Initial Consultation and subsequently the DCSF has made the 
Social Deprivation Supplement a statutory requirement.  The position concerning the 
implementation of a differentiated base rate is less clear and, therefore, as stated above 
a common rate of £3.60 per hour has been used as a starting point. 

 
21. The Social Deprivation Supplement uses the Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) to 

identify the postcodes of children living in the 30 % most disadvantaged Local Super 
Output Areas (LSOAs) and schools / settings they attend in 3 bands as above.  The 
calculation is based on January 2008 numbers.  

 
22. Option A also includes a lump sum for Nursery Schools of £65K.  A clear majority of 

schools and settings supported the inclusion of this lump sum. 
 

23. The base rate for Option B is lower than Option A to take account of the inclusion of 
other funding factors as follows: 
• A lump sum for nursery schools 

Agenda Item 4
Page 17



• A lump sum for PVI administration based on £100 for all settings plus 10p per hour 
uptake 

• PVI rent, rates and premises costs at 10p per hour uptake  
• Nursery school and PVI utility costs at 10p per hour uptake. 

 
24. A lump sum for PVI administration was widely supported in the Initial Consultation.  The 

methodology for calculation used above takes into account an element (£100) for all PVI 
providers plus 10p per hour uptake of provision.  A factor for PVI rent, rates and 
premises costs was also supported.  The uptake methodology has also been used for 
this factor and likewise for an additional factor for utility costs for nursery schools and 
PVI settings.  Lower schools have not been included in the utility cost element because 
they will continue to be funded for this through their existing formula. 

 
25. Options C and D are similar to A and B respectively but with the exclusion of the nursery 

school lump sum element.  As stated above the exclusion of the nursery school lump 
sum would seriously undermine the position of the nursery schools.  

 
Elements not included in the Funding Formulae 
 
26. The following factors have not been included in the EYSFF: 

• Qualified teachers and nursery nurses in the maintained sector 
• Children with Special Educational Needs (SEN) 
• Free schools meals  
• Sustainability. 

 
27. Whilst a majority of settings supported a factor for both teachers and nursery nurses in 

the maintained sector and a quality factor in the non-maintained sector several providers 
found the latter too complicated and without an accurate information gathering process 
difficult to implement.  The quality factor based on the employed of a graduate offered a 
compromise which could be more easily supported by the collection of accurate 
information (see paragraph 26 below).  It is suggested that a simplified factor that 
recognises a quality element will introduced from April 2011 when further research has 
been undertaken.   
 

28. A clear majority of providers supported the retention of the current processes for 
allocating funding for children with SEN and Free Schools Meals.  It is also suggested 
that the current funding process for sustainability is retained.  

 
Other Funding Factor Issues 
 
29. It is suggested that a quality element based on the actual employment or commitment to 

employ a graduate though the Graduate Leadership Fund is introduced from April 2011 
following further research to ensure accurate collection of information.  This simplified 
element for quality would provide for the DCSF’s suggestion that it should be included in 
the EYSFF and would replace the more complicated version for the PV I sector in the 
Initial Consultation and the element for Qualified Teachers and Nursery Nurses in the 
Maintained sector.  For a quality factor to be introduced the base rate for any of the 
options would need to be reduced, possibly by 10p.  It should be noted that the 
redistribution of this 10p contingency for quality will result in settings in the PVI sector 
receiving differentiated amounts related to the employment of a graduate from April 
2011. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 18



30. The LA is required to operate the Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) for all maintained 
schools in the financial year 2010-11. The DCSF will decide in the near future whether or 
not this MFG process will continue into 2011-12 and onwards.  The MFG guarantees 
each maintained school a minimum percentage increase in the funding, per pupil, it 
receives.  For 2010-11 this is 2.1% compared to the funding in 2009-10.  Given that this 
is a legal requirement for the LA to implement, no maintained school can suffer a 
reduction in the per pupil funding it receives in 2010-11, the first year of operation of the 
EYSFF.  Whichever model, within the consultation document, is finally agreed nursery 
schools will have significant reductions in their EYSFF allocations compared to their 
existing school budget allocations.  It is suggested that there is transitional protection for 
nursery and lower schools over the maximum of three years as allowed by DCSF.  This 
will take the form of a factor to provide full protection to nursery and lower schools in 
financial year 2010-11 (which the MFG process as described above would provide in any 
event), reducing by one-third in cash terms each financial year, until there is no 
transitional protection from the beginning of the 2013-14 financial year.  It is intended 
that the amount released year by year from the decrease in transitional protection (up to 
£580,000 in total by 2013-14 depending on the model chosen) will go back into the total 
pot for distribution through the base rate, the social deprivation factor and the other 
funding factors for all settings. 

 
31. The PVI sector will continue to be funded as they are currently, namely, termly on 

children’s uptake of hours.  Schools’ annual budget for the Early Years will be based on 
January uptake of children’s hours.  However, it is proposed that schools will be counted 
termly and any adjustments due to fluctuation in numbers will be made in the next 
financial year.  A contingency amount has been included in each model to allow for this. 

 
Consultation Timetable 

32. The timetable for the introduction of the EYSFF is as follows: 
 

Date  Activity 
September 2009 Results of initial consultation analysed and presented to 

Early Years Reference Group and Schools Forum 

September 2009 Draft Consultation Document including proposed draft 
formula and impact assessment to Early Years 
Reference Group and School Forum 

2 to 30 November 2009 Final consultation period for all stakeholders 

2, 3, 17 and 18 November 2009 Consultation events for schools and settings 

December 2009 – January 2010 Outcomes of Consultation presented to Early Years 
Reference Group and Schools Forum 

April 2010 Implement of EYSFF 

 
Glossary 
 
33. Please find a glossary of the terms used below: 

 
Term Meaning Description 
AWPU Age Weighted 

Pupil Unit 
A factor used in local authority funding formulae to 
distribute different amounts of funding for pupils of 
different ages 

Agenda Item 4
Page 19



 
Code of 
Practice  

 Code of Practice on the Provision of Nursery 
Education Places for Three and Four Year Olds, 
statutory guidance on the free entitlement, to which 
local authorities must have regard – draft revised 
version to be consulted upon in Autumn 2009, with 
final implementation September 2010 

DCSF Department for 
Children, 
Schools and 
Families 

The Government Department responsible for early 
years education and schools 

Early Years 
Reference 
Group 

 The consultation group for matters relating to the 
early years entitlement with representation from lower 
and nursery schools, pre-schools and playgroups, 
childminders, private and independent providers, and 
local authority elected members and officers 

EYSFF Early Years 
Single Funding 
Formula 

The agreed acronym for the new single funding 
formula 

FFEE Free Flexible 
Extended 
Entitlement  

The free entitlement is being extended to 15 hours 
and made available flexibly over a minimum of three 
days from September 2010 (from September 2009 
for the 25% most disadvantaged children) 

Impact 
Assessment 

 Assessment of change to each individual setting 
within a local authority, for example, the positive or 
negative financial or pupil number impact 

IMD Index of Multiple 
Deprivation 

The IMD combines a number of indicators across 
economic, social and housing issues into a single 
deprivation score for each small area in England.  
This allows each area to be ranked relative to one 
another according to their level of deprivation   

ISB Individual 
Schools Budget 

The sum of the delegated budgets of all schools in a 
local authority 

LSOAs Local Super 
Output Areas 

Local authority wards are divided into smaller areas 
known as Local Super Output Areas 

Maintained 
providers 

 All nursery and lower schools providing the early 
years free entitlement 

Non-maintained 
providers 

 All private, voluntary and independent settings 
providing the early years free entitlement including 
private day nurseries, pre-school, playgroups, 
childminders and independent schools 

Participation  The level of attendance at a setting on which funding 
of the free entitlement is based  

Personalisation 
/ HILLN 

High Incidence 
Low Level Need 

This relates to funding for children with special 
educational needs which are of a high incidence and 
a low level need 

Perverse 
incentives 

 A feature of the formula that provides a reward for 
taking a future action that is at variance with or even 
the opposite of that intended, and / or that promotes 
inefficiency 

Reception Year  Those children who have their fifth birthday between 
the 1 September and 31 August in a school year 

SBS School budget 
share 

The share of the IBS that an individual school 
receives 

Agenda Item 4
Page 20



Schools Forum  The local authority statutory body which oversees the 
allocation of funding to early years providers, schools 
and post 16 education providers 

SEN Special 
Educational 
Needs 

Children with special educational needs or a disability 

Social 
Deprivation 
Funding 

 Funding to support children from socially deprived 
backgrounds so as to promote their opportunity to 
achieve at equivalent levels to other children 

Statutory aged 
children 

 Children become of statutory school age in the term 
following their fifth birthday 

Summer term 
adjustment 

 The additional funding lower schools receive based 
on the net leavers and starters of 3+ and 3+ 
headcount children 

 
Early Years Reference Group 
 
34. Members of the Early Years Reference Group are as follows: 
 
Valerie Wang Kingsmoor Lower 

School 
kingsmoorlower@schools.bedfordshire.gov.uk 
 

Anne Bell Headteacher, Willow 
Nursery School 

willownursery@schools.bedfordshire.gov.uk 
 

Ann Burton Orchard School ann.burton@orchardschool.org.uk 
 

Shirley Crosbie Headteacher, 
Glenwood Special 
School 

glenwoodschool@schools.bedfordshire.gov.uk 
 

Karen Finney 
 

Early Years Strand 
Leader 

karen.finney@central.bedfordshire.gov.uk 
 

Dawn Hill Schools’ Finance 
Manager 

dawn.hill@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk 
 

Sue Howley Chair of Governors, 
Greenleas Lower 
and Fairfield Lower 

suehowley@talktalk.net 
 

Sharon Ingram Hadrian Lower 
School 

hadrianlower@schools.bedfordshire.gov.uk 
 

Heather Knox Childcare 
Development Team 
Leader 

heather.knox@centralbedfordshire.co.uk 
 

Carol Leggatt Woodentops Pre-
school 

carol.leggatt@tinyworld.co.uk 
 

Gezim Leka Senior Schools 
Finance Adviser 

gezim.leka@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk 
 

Cllr Anita Lewis Portfolio Holder, 
Children’s Services 

anita.lewis@centralbeds.gov.uk 
 

Colin Phelps Headteacher, St 
Mary’s VC Lower 
School, Stotfold 

stmarysstotfold@schools.bedfordshire.gov.uk 
 
 

Mark Southwood  National 
Childminding 
Association    

mark.southwood@ncma.org.uk 
 
 

Clare Stimpson School Improvement 
Adviser 

clare.stimpson@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 21



Bob Thompson Early Years 
Consultant 

bob.thompson1947@btinternet.com 

Sue Tyler Head of Early 
Childhood 
Intervention and 
Prevention 

sue.tyler@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk 
 
 

 
Please detached and return the completed consultation below to Bob Thompson, Early 
Years Consultant, Princeton Court, Pilgrim Centre, Brickhill Drive, BEDFORD MK41 7PZ or 
email to bob.thompson1947@btinternet.com by Monday 30 November 2009. 
 
Thank you for your co-operation. 

 

Please tick the relevant box for formula proposed.  
 
Formula Options  

 
Formula Options 
Option A 
• Base Rate £3.60 per hour x hours uptake of children 
• Social deprivation supplement x average hours uptake of children 
• Nursery school lump sum 

 
Option B 
• Base Rate £3.30 per hour x hours uptake of children 
• Social deprivation supplement x average hours uptake of children 
• Other funding factors 

o Lump sum for nursery school headteachers 
o Lump sum for PVI administration £100 plus 10 per hour uptake 
o PVI rent, rates and premises at 10p per hour uptake 
o Nursery school and PVI utility costs at 10 per hour uptake  
 

Option C 
• Base Rate £3.60 per hour x hours uptake of children 
• Social deprivation supplement x average hours uptake of children 
 
Option D 
• Base Rate £3.30 per hour x hours uptake of children 
• Social deprivation supplement x average hours uptake of children 
• Other funding factors 

o Lump sum for PVI administration £100 plus 10 per hour uptake 
o PVI rent, rates and premises at 10p per hour uptake 
o Nursery school and PVI utility costs at 10 per hour uptake  

 
 
 
       Option A                Option B                   Option C                 Option D 
 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 22



 
 

 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Appendices: 

 
Appendix A  -  Outcomes of the Initial EYSFF Consultation 

B (i)   -  Summary of Providers/Setting Total Budgets per model 
B (ii)  -  Summary of Early Years Funding Element per model                                 

(difference only applicable to Lower Schools only) 

Agenda Item 4
Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 
 

CBC SFF Consultation outcomes 
 
Consultation responses 
 
Number of responses 
Maintained schools:  8 Private, Voluntary and independent (PVI):  34 Total:  42 
Base hourly rate - Basic Structure 
• Option 1: Common rate plus social deprivation 
• Option 2: Common rate without social deprivation 
• Option 3: Different rate with social deprivation 
• Option 4: Different rate without social deprivation 
Option 1:  13 Option 2:  7 Option 3:  20 Option 4:  2 Nil: 0 
Social Deprivation 
• 3 bands using IMD for LSOAs – low, medium and high 
Agree:  24 Disagree:  8 Unsure:  10 Nil:  0 
Nursery School Headteachers 
• Continue to provide nursery school lump sum 
Agree:  20 Disagree:  11 Unsure:  11 Nil:  0 
PVI Administration 
• Leave nursery and lower school lump sums intact and establish lump sum for PVI 

administration 
Agree:  29 Disagree:  9 Unsure:  4 Nil:  0 
Sustainability 
• Establish lump sum for qualifying providers with fewer than x pupils up to the equivalent 

of funding for x pupils where viability of provision necessary for sufficiency 
Agree:  23 Disagree:  7 Unsure:  11 Nil:  1 
Rent, rates and premises costs 
• Option 1: Leave rents, rates and conditions survey allocations for schools intact and fund 

costs for PVI providers on uptake 
• Option 2: Leave rents, rates and  conditions survey allocation for schools intact and fund 

PVI providers at two set amounts – 1) those registered for up to 24 children and 2) those 
above 24 children 

Option 1:  18 Option 2:  20 Unsure:  2 Nil:  2 
Quality funding for PVI sector 
• Allocate funding to all PVI providers on qualification of staff using 3 bands based on pupil 

uptake 
Agree:  19 Disagree:  12 Unsure:  11 Nil:  0 
Qualified teachers and nursery nurses in the maintained sector 
• Establish a formula factor based on pupil uptake for qualified teachers and nursery 

nurses in maintained schools 
Agree:  21 Disagree:  7 Unsure:  14 Nil:  0 
Meals provision 
• Continue to fund free meals and school meals by current funding mechanisms 
Agree:  34 Disagree:  3 Unsure:  5 Nil:  0 
Special educational needs (SEN) 
• Retain the current funding mechanisms for funding children with SEN in maintained and 

PVI sectors  
Agree:  37 Disagree:  2 Unsure:  3 Nil:  0 
Single pupil count 
• All settings counted and funded termly on uptake 
Agree:  34 Disagree:  3 Unsure:  4 Nil:  1 

Agenda Item 4
Page 25



Transition funding 
• Guaranteed minimum funding level per child per hour (no setting receiving less than an 

average of £x per hour even if the formula suggests a lower figure) 
Agree:  33 Disagree:  4 Unsure:  4 Nil:  1 
Schools MFG 
• The 2010-11 MFG calculation should use the same methodology of counting for both the 

base year and the funding year 
Agree:  24 Disagree:  4 Unsure:  13 Nil: 1 

 
Comments 

 
Base hourly rate - Basic Structure 
Option 1:  Option 2:  Option 3: Option 4: Nil: 
Comments 
 
 
Social Deprivation 
Agree: Disagree: Unsure:  Nil: 
Comments 
 
 
Nursery School Headteachers 
Agree: Disagree:  Unsure:  Nil: 
Comments  
 
 
PVI Administration 
Agree:  Disagree:  Unsure:  Nil: 
Comments 
 
Sustainability 
Agree:  Disagree:  Unsure: Nil: 
Comments 
 
 
Rent, rates and premises costs 
Option 1: Option 2: Nil: 
Comments 
 
 
Quality funding for PVI sector 
Agree: Disagree: Unsure: Nil: 
Comments 
 
 
Qualified teachers and nursery nurses in the maintained sector 
Agree: Disagree: Unsure: Nil: 
Comments 
 
 
Meals provision 
Agree: Disagree: Unsure: Nil: 
Comments 

Agenda Item 4
Page 26



 
 
Special educational needs (SEN) 
Agree: Disagree: Unsure: Nil: 
Comments 
 
 
Single pupil count 
Agree: Disagree: Unsure: Nil: 
Comments 
 
Transition funding 
Agree: Disagree: Unsure: Nil: 
Comments 
 
Schools MFG 
Agree: Disagree: Unsure: Nil: 
Comments 
 
Further comments 
 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

T
o

ta
l B

u
d

g
ed

 p
er

 M
o

d
el

S
in

g
le

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
o

rm
u

la
E

ar
ly

 Y
ea

rs
 R

ev
ie

w
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 B
(i

)

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

A
rle
se
y

25
3,
34
8

26
0,
10
0

23
6,
44
5

30
,7
02

23
8,
63
9

2,
19

4
37
,3
40

23
9,
01
9

2,
57

4
45
,2
29

23
6,
81
4

36
9

10
0,
51
6

23
7,
27
1

82
6

10
8,
48
1

T
he
 L
aw

ns
39
9,
78
1

41
5,
70
1

35
1,
70
4

16
,6
68

38
2,
19
3

30
,4

89
12
7,
81
2

38
4,
59
1

32
,8

87
14
0,
59
9

36
6,
20
7

14
,5

03
17
6,
82
6

37
0,
20
3

18
,4

99
19
1,
21
2

W
es
tfi
el
d 
N
ur
se
ry

36
2,
42
3

37
2,
62
7

34
7,
28
6

97
,7
45

34
2,
46
4

-4
,8

22
12
5,
22
8

34
4,
19
9

-3
,0

86
13
5,
26
2

33
4,
82
9

-1
2,

45
6

18
2,
59
4

33
6,
56
5

-1
0,

72
1

19
2,
62
8

W
ill
ow

24
0,
04
1

24
7,
08
8

23
5,
19
7

37
,1
80

23
3,
03
5

-2
,1

62
39
,0
87

23
3,
64
9

-1
,5

49
46
,8
14

22
9,
96
6

-5
,2

31
10
1,
01
8

23
0,
70
3

-4
,4

95
10
8,
86
9

T
o

ta
l N

u
rs

er
y

1,
25

5,
59

4
1,

29
5,

51
6

1,
17

0,
63

2
18

2,
29

5
1,

19
6,

33
1

25
,6

99
32

9,
46

7
1,

20
1,

45
8

30
,8

26
36

7,
90

5
1,

16
7,

81
7

-2
,8

15
56

0,
95

5
1,

17
4,

74
1

4,
10

9
60

1,
19

0

M
O

D
E

L
 D

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

 -
  M

F
G

 

M
O

D
E

L
 A

M
O

D
E

L
 B

M
O

D
E

L
 C

P
ro

vi
d

er
 / 

S
et

ti
n

g

09
-1

0 
A

ct
u

al
10

-1
1 

In
d

ic
at

iv
e

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

1
E
:\m

od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
9\
1\
4\
A
I0
00
17
41
9\
04
C
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
B
ia
nd
B
ii0
.x
ls

Agenda Item 4
Page 29



S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

T
o

ta
l B

u
d

g
ed

 p
er

 M
o

d
el

S
in

g
le

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
o

rm
u

la
E

ar
ly

 Y
ea

rs
 R

ev
ie

w
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 B
(i

)

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

M
O

D
E

L
 D

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

 -
  M

F
G

 

M
O

D
E

L
 A

M
O

D
E

L
 B

M
O

D
E

L
 C

P
ro

vi
d

er
 / 

S
et

ti
n

g

09
-1

0 
A

ct
u

al
10

-1
1 

In
d

ic
at

iv
e

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

L
o

w
er

s 
w

it
h

 E
Y

 p
u

p
il 

(a
ff

ec
te

d
)

A
ll 
S
ai
nt
s

44
0,
44
3

45
7,
21
5

44
1,
45
7

0
43
8,
82
9

-2
,6

29
0

43
7,
73
5

-3
,7

23
0

43
8,
82
9

-2
,6

29
0

43
7,
73
5

-3
,7

23
0

A
rd
le
y 
H
ill

61
5,
54
2

58
8,
82
6

58
8,
83
5

0
58
9,
45
3

61
8

0
58
9,
45
3

61
8

0
58
9,
45
3

61
8

0
58
9,
45
3

61
8

0
A
sh
to
n 
S
t P

et
er
's

45
1,
53
9

47
4,
42
7

47
4,
43
5

0
47
5,
00
5

57
0

0
47
5,
00
5

57
0

0
47
5,
00
5

57
0

0
47
5,
00
5

57
0

0
A
sp
le
y 
G
ui
se

41
2,
28
8

44
6,
33
0

42
9,
26
3

0
42
9,
44
6

18
4

0
42
8,
76
2

-5
00

0
42
9,
44
6

18
4

0
42
8,
76
2

-5
00

0
B
ea
ud
es
er
t

69
3,
75
2

70
6,
44
5

72
0,
00
9

25
,0
34

71
9,
95
3

-5
7

30
,9
01

71
9,
95
3

-5
7

32
,5
43

71
9,
95
3

-5
7

30
,9
01

71
9,
95
3

-5
7

32
,5
43

B
ee
cr
of
t

78
3,
57
4

83
5,
54
5

84
1,
89
7

0
83
3,
41
7

-8
,4

79
0

83
2,
59
6

-9
,3

01
0

83
3,
41
7

-8
,4

79
0

83
2,
59
6

-9
,3

01
0

C
ad
di
ng
to
n 
V
ill
ag
e

63
5,
63
1

69
9,
73
7

66
8,
48
3

0
68
5,
49
6

17
,0

13
0

68
0,
84
5

12
,3

61
0

68
5,
49
6

17
,0

13
0

68
0,
84
5

12
,3

61
0

C
ha
lto
n

19
4,
00
1

19
5,
85
5

18
9,
16
4

0
18
7,
68
8

-1
,4

76
0

18
7,
41
4

-1
,7

50
0

18
7,
68
8

-1
,4

76
0

18
7,
41
4

-1
,7

50
0

C
hu
rc
h 
E
nd

75
4,
72
3

77
6,
59
1

77
6,
60
3

0
77
6,
65
1

48
0

77
6,
65
1

48
0

77
6,
65
1

48
0

77
6,
65
1

48
0

C
lip
st
on
e 
B
ro
ok

55
8,
99
2

51
2,
53
8

49
9,
09
7

0
49
5,
23
0

-3
,8

67
0

49
4,
54
6

-4
,5

51
0

49
5,
23
0

-3
,8

67
0

49
4,
54
6

-4
,5

51
0

D
er
w
en
t

44
9,
22
1

48
6,
14
3

48
6,
60
0

0
48
6,
64
0

39
0

48
5,
13
4

-1
,4

66
0

48
6,
64
0

39
0

48
5,
13
4

-1
,4

66
0

D
ov
er
y 
D
ow

n
40
7,
24
5

42
4,
17
1

42
4,
17
8

0
42
4,
22
6

48
0

42
4,
22
6

48
0

42
4,
22
6

48
0

42
4,
22
6

48
0

D
ow

ns
id
e

50
9,
38
3

52
4,
25
2

53
5,
88
2

0
53
3,
93
2

-1
,9

50
0

53
2,
42
6

-3
,4

56
0

53
3,
93
2

-1
,9

50
0

53
2,
42
6

-3
,4

56
0

D
un
to
n

25
2,
22
1

25
7,
87
3

25
7,
87
5

0
25
7,
97
0

95
0

25
7,
97
0

95
0

25
7,
97
0

95
0

25
7,
97
0

95
0

E
at
on
 B
ra
y

36
9,
21
8

43
0,
03
1

42
4,
20
3

3,
76
5

42
6,
14
1

1,
93

8
0

42
4,
12
8

-7
5

17
6

42
6,
14
1

1,
93

8
0

42
4,
12
8

-7
5

17
6

E
ve
rs
ho
lt

28
7,
76
6

30
1,
67
1

30
5,
57
5

6,
46
3

30
5,
82
5

25
1

5,
67
8

30
5,
82
5

25
1

6,
13
4

30
5,
82
5

25
1

5,
67
8

30
5,
82
5

25
1

6,
13
4

F
ai
rf
ie
ld
 P
ar
k

42
9,
23
6

50
3,
90
3

48
3,
61
8

0
50
3,
90
7

20
,2

89
0

50
3,
90
7

20
,2

89
0

50
3,
90
7

20
,2

89
0

50
3,
90
7

20
,2

89
0

F
lit
w
ic
k

71
9,
48
3

82
8,
75
9

79
6,
36
2

0
79
4,
57
5

-1
,7

88
0

79
3,
06
9

-3
,2

93
0

79
4,
57
5

-1
,7

88
0

79
3,
06
9

-3
,2

93
0

G
ot
hi
c 
M
ed
e

59
6,
94
2

67
5,
76
6

67
5,
77
6

0
67
5,
96
6

19
0

0
67
5,
96
6

19
0

0
67
5,
96
6

19
0

0
67
5,
96
6

19
0

0
G
ra
ve
nh
ur
st

19
1,
02
0

20
2,
33
6

19
6,
01
4

1,
24
5

19
6,
00
6

-8
1,
35
6

19
6,
00
6

-8
1,
49
4

19
6,
00
6

-8
1,
35
6

19
6,
00
6

-8
1,
49
4

G
re
en
fie
ld

38
8,
86
0

40
6,
19
1

40
0,
56
0

0
39
5,
92
1

-4
,6

39
0

39
5,
51
1

-5
,0

49
0

39
5,
92
1

-4
,6

39
0

39
5,
51
1

-5
,0

49
0

G
re
en
le
as

70
0,
95
9

78
5,
77
7

78
6,
91
0

0
81
2,
60
3

25
,6

93
0

80
5,
62
7

18
,7

17
0

81
2,
60
3

25
,6

93
0

80
5,
62
7

18
,7

17
0

H
ad
ria
n

68
4,
21
7

75
6,
23
8

75
6,
25
1

0
75
6,
29
9

48
0

75
6,
29
9

48
0

75
6,
29
9

48
0

75
6,
29
9

48
0

H
aw

th
or
n 
P
ar
k

89
7,
21
6

98
0,
59
9

96
4,
12
8

0
98
4,
28
2

20
,1

53
0

97
7,
44
2

13
,3

13
0

98
4,
28
2

20
,1

53
0

97
7,
44
2

13
,3

13
0

H
oc
kl
iff
e

22
3,
06
0

23
2,
69
9

22
9,
27
0

10
,0
89

22
9,
12
1

-1
49

10
,2
38

22
9,
25
1

-1
9

10
,9
15

22
9,
12
1

-1
49

10
,2
38

22
9,
25
1

-1
9

10
,9
15

H
ou
gh
to
n 
C
on
qu
es
t

28
1,
78
5

28
2,
28
3

28
2,
28
6

0
27
3,
20
0

-9
,0

85
0

27
3,
20
0

-9
,0

85
0

27
3,
20
0

-9
,0

85
0

27
3,
20
0

-9
,0

85
0

H
ou
gh
to
n 
R
eg
is

62
4,
19
2

65
5,
31
6

63
9,
13
4

0
66
0,
62
3

21
,4

89
0

65
4,
74
2

15
,6

08
0

66
0,
62
3

21
,4

89
0

65
4,
74
2

15
,6

08
0

H
us
bo
rn
e 
C
ra
w
le
y

24
9,
84
7

21
2,
33
1

21
1,
18
8

0
21
0,
86
0

-3
28

0
21
0,
72
3

-4
66

0
21
0,
86
0

-3
28

0
21
0,
72
3

-4
66

0
Ic
kn
ie
ld

75
5,
78
0

80
3,
03
2

76
3,
36
2

0
78
3,
89
8

20
,5

36
0

77
9,
20
1

15
,8

39
0

78
3,
89
8

20
,5

36
0

77
9,
20
1

15
,8

39
0

Jo
hn
 D
on
ne

30
9,
32
4

29
2,
08
8

28
4,
25
3

1,
83
7

28
9,
80
5

5,
55

2
0

28
7,
42
2

3,
16

9
0

28
9,
80
5

5,
55

2
0

28
7,
42
2

3,
16

9
0

K
en
sw

or
th

22
8,
31
1

22
8,
42
5

23
3,
71
2

0
23
0,
72
1

-2
,9

91
0

23
0,
03
7

-3
,6

75
0

23
0,
72
1

-2
,9

91
0

23
0,
03
7

-3
,6

75
0

K
in
gs
m
oo
r

61
8,
75
8

69
2,
39
3

67
9,
19
2

0
67
9,
52
5

33
3

0
67
9,
52
5

33
3

0
67
9,
52
5

33
3

0
67
9,
52
5

33
3

0
La
bu
rn
um

49
2,
47
5

49
9,
96
7

49
3,
17
0

0
50
5,
43
0

12
,2

61
0

50
1,
32
6

8,
15

7
0

50
5,
43
0

12
,2

61
0

50
1,
32
6

8,
15

7
0

La
nc
ot

1,
06
5,
50
1

1,
07
7,
52
0

1,
09
2,
19
9

0
1,
11
0,
82
4

18
,6

25
0

1,
10
1,
24
8

9,
04

9
0

1,
11
0,
82
4

18
,6

25
0

1,
10
1,
24
8

9,
04

9
0

La
ng
fo
rd

54
5,
19
1

54
6,
17
6

54
6,
18
4

0
53
8,
38
6

-7
,7

97
4,
98
9

53
8,
38
6

-7
,7

97
4,
98
9

53
8,
38
6

-7
,7

97
4,
98
9

53
8,
38
6

-7
,7

97
4,
98
9

La
rk
 R
is
e

71
5,
45
4

75
9,
65
7

73
4,
27
1

0
76
1,
50
4

27
,2

33
0

75
3,
95
8

19
,6

87
0

76
1,
50
4

27
,2

33
0

75
3,
95
8

19
,6

87
0

La
w
ns
id
e

79
9,
17
0

83
2,
62
6

83
2,
63
6

0
83
3,
01
6

38
0

0
83
3,
01
6

38
0

0
83
3,
01
6

38
0

0
83
3,
01
6

38
0

0
Le
ed
on

76
3,
28
9

84
0,
79
9

84
0,
81
4

0
82
5,
81
0

-1
5,

00
4

0
82
5,
81
0

-1
5,

00
4

0
82
5,
81
0

-1
5,

00
4

0
82
5,
81
0

-1
5,

00
4

0
Li
ns
la
de

60
1,
28
2

64
0,
38
7

64
2,
73
9

0
65
1,
90
2

9,
16

3
0

64
8,
75
5

6,
01

6
0

65
1,
90
2

9,
16

3
0

64
8,
75
5

6,
01

6
0

M
ap
le
 T
re
e

66
0,
61
8

70
3,
04
5

68
4,
04
9

0
70
7,
82
9

23
,7

79
0

70
1,
59
3

17
,5

44
0

70
7,
82
9

23
,7

79
0

70
1,
59
3

17
,5

44
0

M
ar
y 
B
as
se
tt

40
5,
01
8

47
0,
13
6

45
9,
57
5

0
45
9,
94
2

36
8

0
45
8,
43
7

-1
,1

38
0

45
9,
94
2

36
8

0
45
8,
43
7

-1
,1

38
0

M
og
ge
rh
an
ge
r

21
3,
05
2

20
1,
91
7

19
7,
51
5

0
19
7,
56
3

48
0

19
7,
56
3

48
0

19
7,
56
3

48
0

19
7,
56
3

48
0

N
or
th
ill

26
8,
01
4

26
9,
37
1

27
1,
48
8

0
26
9,
96
5

-1
,5

23
0

26
9,
69
2

-1
,7

97
0

26
9,
96
5

-1
,5

23
0

26
9,
69
2

-1
,7

97
0

P
ot
to
n

61
8,
89
7

63
0,
41
0

63
0,
42
0

0
63
0,
46
8

48
0

63
0,
46
8

48
0

63
0,
46
8

48
0

63
0,
46
8

48
0

P
ul
fo
rd

41
0,
04
3

42
4,
08
7

42
4,
09
4

0
42
4,
18
9

95
0

42
4,
18
9

95
0

42
4,
18
9

95
0

42
4,
18
9

95
0

P
ul
lo
xh
ill

19
4,
56
5

20
5,
10
8

20
0,
70
7

0
19
8,
88
0

-1
,8

27
0

19
8,
88
0

-1
,8

27
0

19
8,
88
0

-1
,8

27
0

19
8,
88
0

-1
,8

27
0

R
ay
ns
fo
rd

45
2,
29
4

47
4,
70
4

45
3,
39
7

0
45
3,
18
0

-2
18

0
45
1,
94
9

-1
,4

48
0

45
3,
18
0

-2
18

0
45
1,
94
9

-1
,4

48
0

R
id
gm

on
t

26
0,
39
5

27
7,
35
5

26
2,
55
9

78
1

26
2,
51
1

-4
7

11
7

26
2,
51
1

-4
7

80
1

26
2,
51
1

-4
7

11
7

26
2,
51
1

-4
7

80
1

R
ob
er
t P

ee
l

85
9,
95
6

92
1,
60
9

89
1,
19
5

0
90
8,
03
9

16
,8

45
0

90
2,
56
7

11
,3

73
0

90
8,
03
9

16
,8

45
0

90
2,
56
7

11
,3

73
0

R
oe
cr
of
t

40
8,
59
8

40
5,
00
1

41
3,
46
2

0
41
1,
79
4

-1
,6

67
0

41
0,
70
0

-2
,7

61
0

41
1,
79
4

-1
,6

67
0

41
0,
70
0

-2
,7

61
0

R
us
se
ll

51
9,
73
9

52
4,
23
1

52
4,
24
0

0
52
4,
28
8

48
0

52
4,
28
8

48
0

52
4,
28
8

48
0

52
4,
28
8

48
0

S
he
ffo
rd

88
9,
20
9

94
9,
67
1

95
5,
70
7

0
96
6,
53
9

10
,8

31
0

96
1,
20
4

5,
49

7
0

96
6,
53
9

10
,8

31
0

96
1,
20
4

5,
49

7
0

S
he
lto
n

22
4,
07
6

24
0,
44
9

23
2,
58
0

0
23
0,
03
5

-2
,5

45
0

22
9,
98
9

-2
,5

91
0

23
0,
03
5

-2
,5

45
0

22
9,
98
9

-2
,5

91
0

S
lip
 E
nd

35
2,
34
9

33
5,
33
2

35
2,
27
8

5,
96
1

35
5,
72
6

3,
44

8
0

35
2,
88
8

61
0

0
35
5,
72
6

3,
44

8
0

35
2,
88
8

61
0

0
S
ou
th
co
tt

83
2,
79
1

87
0,
98
1

83
7,
63
9

0
83
8,
05
4

41
6

0
83
4,
98
8

-2
,6

51
0

83
8,
05
4

41
6

0
83
4,
98
8

-2
,6

51
0

S
ou
th
ill

28
1,
73
7

27
7,
25
2

28
0,
42
6

0
27
7,
61
3

-2
,8

12
0

27
7,
20
3

-3
,2

22
0

27
7,
61
3

-2
,8

12
0

27
7,
20
3

-3
,2

22
0

2
E
:\m

od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
9\
1\
4\
A
I0
00
17
41
9\
04
C
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
B
ia
nd
B
ii0
.x
ls

Agenda Item 4
Page 30



S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

T
o

ta
l B

u
d

g
ed

 p
er

 M
o

d
el

S
in

g
le

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
o

rm
u

la
E

ar
ly

 Y
ea

rs
 R

ev
ie

w
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 B
(i

)

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

M
O

D
E

L
 D

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

 -
  M

F
G

 

M
O

D
E

L
 A

M
O

D
E

L
 B

M
O

D
E

L
 C

P
ro

vi
d

er
 / 

S
et

ti
n

g

09
-1

0 
A

ct
u

al
10

-1
1 

In
d

ic
at

iv
e

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

S
ou
th
la
nd
s

80
0,
23
3

80
7,
94
6

78
4,
26
8

0
78
1,
96
6

-2
,3

02
0

78
0,
18
8

-4
,0

80
0

78
1,
96
6

-2
,3

02
0

78
0,
18
8

-4
,0

80
0

S
t A

nd
re
w
's

1,
12
8,
48
7

1,
15
2,
75
6

1,
20
1,
18
1

0
1,
21
0,
06
7

8,
88

6
0

1,
20
3,
82
0

2,
63

9
0

1,
21
0,
06
7

8,
88

6
0

1,
20
3,
82
0

2,
63

9
0

S
t C

hr
is
to
ph
er
's

59
1,
96
2

61
2,
35
5

61
2,
36
6

0
61
2,
41
4

48
0

61
2,
41
4

48
0

61
2,
41
4

48
0

61
2,
41
4

48
0

S
t G

eo
rg
e'
s

39
8,
73
0

41
7,
20
0

42
0,
28
7

0
41
2,
81
8

-7
,4

68
0

41
2,
13
4

-8
,1

52
0

41
2,
81
8

-7
,4

68
0

41
2,
13
4

-8
,1

52
0

S
t M

ar
y'
s 
(S
to
tfo
ld
)

68
7,
91
1

71
5,
67
9

69
8,
34
0

0
69
6,
80
6

-1
,5

34
0

69
4,
20
7

-4
,1

33
0

69
6,
80
6

-1
,5

34
0

69
4,
20
7

-4
,1

33
0

S
t M

ar
y'
s 
(D
un
st
ab
le
)

50
8,
93
1

51
4,
53
1

51
9,
88
3

0
52
2,
99
2

3,
10

9
0

51
9,
45
8

-4
25

0
52
2,
99
2

3,
10

9
0

51
9,
45
8

-4
25

0
S
t S

w
ith
un
's

63
8,
44
9

65
2,
34
1

65
8,
67
5

0
67
1,
57
9

12
,9

04
0

66
7,
20
2

8,
52

7
0

67
1,
57
9

12
,9

04
0

66
7,
20
2

8,
52

7
0

S
t V

in
ce
nt
's

60
6,
93
1

63
0,
29
1

60
4,
75
4

0
60
5,
02
4

27
0

0
60
4,
47
7

-2
78

0
60
5,
02
4

27
0

0
60
4,
47
7

-2
78

0
S
to
nd
on

27
4,
12
4

29
1,
53
9

29
1,
39
9

4,
22
5

29
1,
54
3

14
3

4,
36
8

29
1,
54
3

14
3

4,
36
8

29
1,
54
3

14
3

4,
36
8

29
1,
54
3

14
3

4,
36
8

S
un
do
n

27
4,
62
8

28
2,
07
3

28
5,
90
0

0
29
0,
30
4

4,
40

4
0

28
8,
38
8

2,
48

8
0

29
0,
30
4

4,
40

4
0

28
8,
38
8

2,
48

8
0

T
em

pl
ef
ie
ld

69
7,
07
1

70
9,
30
1

69
9,
09
6

0
69
4,
15
1

-4
,9

45
0

69
3,
19
3

-5
,9

03
0

69
4,
15
1

-4
,9

45
0

69
3,
19
3

-5
,9

03
0

T
ho
m
as
 J
oh
ns
on

31
9,
54
2

32
8,
81
8

31
2,
80
2

0
32
1,
03
1

8,
22

9
0

31
8,
34
0

5,
53

8
0

32
1,
03
1

8,
22

9
0

31
8,
34
0

5,
53

8
0

T
ho
m
as
 W

hi
te
he
ad
 

75
0,
71
4

81
4,
22
4

78
5,
99
3

0
80
2,
95
6

16
,9

63
0

79
7,
21
1

11
,2

18
0

80
2,
95
6

16
,9

63
0

79
7,
21
1

11
,2

18
0

T
ho
rn
hi
ll

64
8,
09
8

62
9,
29
0

63
9,
15
9

0
64
4,
63
1

5,
47

3
0

64
0,
80
1

1,
64

2
0

64
4,
63
1

5,
47

3
0

64
0,
80
1

1,
64

2
0

T
ith
e 
F
ar
m

68
8,
91
3

71
7,
30
9

72
0,
98
1

0
73
1,
40
4

10
,4

23
0

72
5,
38
5

4,
40

4
0

73
1,
40
4

10
,4

23
0

72
5,
38
5

4,
40

4
0

T
od
di
ng
to
n 
S
t G

eo
rg
e

1,
12
8,
83
9

1,
16
4,
81
2

1,
13
3,
43
2

0
1,
14
3,
24
7

9,
81

5
0

1,
13
8,
04
8

4,
61

5
0

1,
14
3,
24
7

9,
81

5
0

1,
13
8,
04
8

4,
61

5
0

T
ot
te
rn
ho
e

30
5,
21
1

31
0,
42
3

30
2,
67
6

0
30
0,
61
6

-2
,0

60
0

30
0,
47
9

-2
,1

97
0

30
0,
61
6

-2
,0

60
0

30
0,
47
9

-2
,1

97
0

W
at
lin
g

54
6,
40
0

56
6,
08
8

56
6,
09
7

0
56
6,
66
7

57
0

0
56
6,
66
7

57
0

0
56
6,
66
7

57
0

0
56
6,
66
7

57
0

0
W
es
to
ni
ng

40
4,
03
8

40
5,
56
7

40
9,
80
1

0
40
6,
66
0

-3
,1

41
0

40
6,
11
3

-3
,6

88
0

40
6,
66
0

-3
,1

41
0

40
6,
11
3

-3
,6

88
0

W
ob
ur
n

18
4,
17
5

19
3,
22
0

19
5,
80
9

3,
24
7

19
5,
66
8

-1
40

4,
58
8

19
5,
66
8

-1
40

5,
40
8

19
5,
66
8

-1
40

4,
58
8

19
5,
66
8

-1
40

5,
40
8

T
o

ta
l L

o
w

er
s 

(a
ff

ec
te

d
)

40
,1

31
,6

25
41

,9
49

,3
43

41
,5

41
,8

13
62

,6
47

41
,7

89
,2

47
24

7,
43

4
62

,2
40

41
,6

47
,9

43
10

6,
13

0
66

,8
33

41
,7

89
,2

47
24

7,
43

4
62

,2
40

41
,6

47
,9

43
10

6,
13

0
66

,8
33

76 L
o

w
er

s 
w

it
h

o
u

t 
 E

Y
 p

u
p

il 
(n

o
t 

af
fe

ct
ed

)
C
al
de
co
te

25
3,
46
9

27
4,
99
2

27
4,
99
5

3,
04
5

27
4,
99
5

0
3,
04
5

27
4,
99
5

0
3,
04
5

27
4,
99
5

0
3,
04
5

27
4,
99
5

0
3,
04
5

C
am

pt
on

37
7,
92
0

39
4,
23
9

39
4,
24
5

0
39
4,
24
5

0
0

39
4,
24
5

0
0

39
4,
24
5

0
0

39
4,
24
5

0
0

C
ra
nf
ie
ld

80
6,
75
4

83
7,
43
9

83
7,
45
3

0
83
7,
45
3

0
0

83
7,
45
3

0
0

83
7,
45
3

0
0

83
7,
45
3

0
0

E
ve
rt
on

21
7,
55
8

22
5,
03
0

22
5,
03
2

3,
49
8

22
5,
03
2

0
3,
49
8

22
5,
03
2

0
3,
49
8

22
5,
03
2

0
3,
49
8

22
5,
03
2

0
3,
49
8

H
ar
lin
gt
on

40
7,
47
2

41
3,
25
1

41
3,
25
7

0
41
3,
25
7

0
0

41
3,
25
7

0
0

41
3,
25
7

0
0

41
3,
25
7

0
0

H
ay
ne
s

29
1,
32
2

32
1,
94
3

32
1,
94
7

7,
53
0

32
1,
94
7

0
7,
53
0

32
1,
94
7

0
7,
53
0

32
1,
94
7

0
7,
53
0

32
1,
94
7

0
7,
53
0

H
ea
th
w
oo
d

48
4,
50
6

51
4,
00
7

51
4,
01
4

1,
92
8

51
4,
01
4

0
1,
92
8

51
4,
01
4

0
1,
92
8

51
4,
01
4

0
1,
92
8

51
4,
01
4

0
1,
92
8

M
au
ld
en

44
5,
46
0

44
2,
37
3

44
2,
37
9

0
44
2,
37
9

0
0

44
2,
37
9

0
0

44
2,
37
9

0
0

44
2,
37
9

0
0

M
ep
pe
rs
ha
ll

34
5,
75
5

37
3,
10
1

37
3,
10
6

9,
34
4

37
3,
10
6

0
9,
34
4

37
3,
10
6

0
9,
34
4

37
3,
10
6

0
9,
34
4

37
3,
10
6

0
9,
34
4

R
am

se
y 
M
an
or

86
6,
22
3

88
7,
66
1

88
7,
67
4

0
88
7,
67
4

0
0

88
7,
67
4

0
0

88
7,
67
4

0
0

88
7,
67
4

0
0

S
hi
lli
ng
to
n

31
9,
86
7

37
5,
26
4

37
5,
26
9

0
37
5,
26
9

0
0

37
5,
26
9

0
0

37
5,
26
9

0
0

37
5,
26
9

0
0

S
ils
oe

47
2,
13
1

48
5,
05
0

48
5,
05
5

0
48
5,
05
5

0
0

48
5,
05
5

0
0

48
5,
05
5

0
0

48
5,
05
5

0
0

S
t L
eo
na
rd
s

29
4,
75
9

28
5,
50
6

28
5,
51
0

0
28
5,
51
0

0
0

28
5,
51
0

0
0

28
5,
51
0

0
0

28
5,
51
0

0
0

S
t M

ar
y'
s 
(C
lo
ph
ill
)

34
3,
41
2

35
8,
49
9

35
8,
50
4

0
35
8,
50
4

0
0

35
8,
50
4

0
0

35
8,
50
4

0
0

35
8,
50
4

0
0

S
ta
nb
rid
ge

31
9,
76
1

32
4,
70
7

32
4,
71
1

0
32
4,
71
1

0
0

32
4,
71
1

0
0

32
4,
71
1

0
0

32
4,
71
1

0
0

S
tu
dh
am

25
8,
62
1

26
8,
60
2

26
8,
60
5

7,
98
8

26
8,
60
5

0
7,
89
3

26
8,
60
5

0
7,
89
3

26
8,
60
5

0
7,
89
3

26
8,
60
5

0
7,
89
3

S
ut
to
n

27
4,
79
8

28
9,
22
2

28
9,
22
5

7,
38
6

28
9,
22
5

0
7,
38
6

28
9,
22
5

0
7,
38
6

28
9,
22
5

0
7,
38
6

28
9,
22
5

0
7,
38
6

S
w
al
lo
w
fie
ld

56
4,
18
7

55
6,
32
6

55
6,
33
5

0
55
6,
33
5

0
0

55
6,
33
5

0
0

55
6,
33
5

0
0

55
6,
33
5

0
0

T
he
 F
irs

75
2,
40
5

77
6,
80
3

77
6,
81
6

0
77
6,
81
6

0
0

77
6,
81
6

0
0

77
6,
81
6

0
0

77
6,
81
6

0
0

W
re
st
lin
gw

or
th

19
4,
17
5

26
4,
04
5

26
4,
04
8

11
,3
92

26
4,
04
8

0
11
,3
92

26
4,
04
8

0
11
,3
92

26
4,
04
8

0
11
,3
92

26
4,
04
8

0
11
,3
92

T
o

ta
l L

o
w

er
s 

(n
o

t 
af

fe
ct

ed
)

8,
29

0,
55

4
8,

66
8,

06
1

8,
66

8,
18

1
52

,1
11

8,
66

8,
18

1
0

52
,0

17
8,

66
8,

18
1

0
52

,0
17

8,
66

8,
18

1
0

52
,0

17
8,

66
8,

18
1

0
52

,0
17

20 T
o

ta
l L

o
w

er
s

48
,4

22
,1

79
50

,6
17

,4
04

0
50

,2
09

,9
94

11
4,

75
8

0
50

,4
57

,4
28

24
7,

43
4

11
4,

25
8

0
50

,3
16

,1
24

10
6,

13
0

11
8,

85
0

0
50

,4
57

,4
28

24
7,

43
4

11
4,

25
8

0
50

,3
16

,1
24

10
6,

13
0

11
8,

85
0

3
E
:\m

od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
9\
1\
4\
A
I0
00
17
41
9\
04
C
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
B
ia
nd
B
ii0
.x
ls

Agenda Item 4
Page 31



S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

T
o

ta
l B

u
d

g
ed

 p
er

 M
o

d
el

S
in

g
le

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
o

rm
u

la
E

ar
ly

 Y
ea

rs
 R

ev
ie

w
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 B
(i

)

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

M
O

D
E

L
 D

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

 -
  M

F
G

 

M
O

D
E

L
 A

M
O

D
E

L
 B

M
O

D
E

L
 C

P
ro

vi
d

er
 / 

S
et

ti
n

g

09
-1

0 
A

ct
u

al
10

-1
1 

In
d

ic
at

iv
e

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

A
co
rn
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

66
,0
06

66
,0
06

66
,0
06

0
66
,0
06

0
0

66
,1
06

10
0

0
66
,0
06

0
0

66
,1
06

10
0

0
A
co
rn
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l (
S
he
ffo
rd
)

67
,0
32

67
,0
32

67
,0
32

0
67
,5
07

47
5

0
67
,6
07

57
5

0
67
,5
07

47
5

0
67
,6
07

57
5

0
A
cr
e 
W
oo
d 
D
ay
 N
ur
se
ry

16
,4
16

16
,4
16

16
,4
16

0
16
,5
59

14
3

0
16
,6
59

24
3

0
16
,5
59

14
3

0
16
,6
59

24
3

0
A
m
pt
hi
ll 
P
re
-S
ch
oo
l P

la
yg
ro
up

76
,9
50

76
,9
50

76
,9
50

0
76
,9
50

0
0

77
,0
50

10
0

0
76
,9
50

0
0

77
,0
50

10
0

0
A
rle
se
y 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

23
,9
40

23
,9
40

23
,9
40

0
24
,2
25

28
5

0
24
,3
25

38
5

0
24
,2
25

28
5

0
24
,3
25

38
5

0
A
sp
le
y 
G
ui
se
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

45
,1
44

45
,1
44

45
,1
44

0
45
,1
44

0
0

45
,2
44

10
0

0
45
,1
44

0
0

45
,2
44

10
0

0
A
un
tie
 S
hi
rle
ys

15
,0
48

15
,0
48

15
,0
48

0
15
,7
61

71
3

0
15
,8
61

81
3

0
15
,7
61

71
3

0
15
,8
61

81
3

0
B
ar
to
n-
Le
-C
la
y 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

32
,4
90

32
,4
90

32
,4
90

0
32
,4
90

0
0

32
,5
90

10
0

0
32
,4
90

0
0

32
,5
90

10
0

0
B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ire
 C
hi
ld
m
in
de
r 
N
et
w
or
k

16
,4
16

16
,4
16

16
,4
16

0
16
,4
16

0
0

16
,5
16

10
0

0
16
,4
16

0
0

16
,5
16

10
0

0
B
lu
eb
el
l H

ea
th
 P
la
yg
ro
up

33
,5
16

33
,5
16

33
,5
16

0
33
,6
59

14
3

0
33
,7
59

24
3

0
33
,6
59

14
3

0
33
,7
59

24
3

0
B
lu
eb
el
l P

la
yg
ro
up

66
,3
48

66
,3
48

66
,3
48

0
66
,4
91

14
3

0
66
,5
91

24
3

0
66
,4
91

14
3

0
66
,5
91

24
3

0
B
lu
eb
el
ls
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

23
,9
40

23
,9
40

23
,9
40

0
23
,9
40

0
0

24
,0
40

10
0

0
23
,9
40

0
0

24
,0
40

10
0

0
B
ra
m
bl
ey
 T
ot
s 
D
ay
 N
ur
se
ry

26
,6
76

26
,6
76

26
,6
76

0
26
,6
76

0
0

26
,7
76

10
0

0
26
,6
76

0
0

26
,7
76

10
0

0
B
rig
ha
m
 P
la
yg
ro
up

48
,5
64

48
,5
64

48
,5
64

0
48
,7
07

14
3

0
48
,8
07

24
3

0
48
,7
07

14
3

0
48
,8
07

24
3

0
B
ro
ok
la
nd
s 
P
la
yg
ro
up

75
,2
40

75
,2
40

75
,2
40

0
75
,6
68

42
8

0
75
,7
68

52
8

0
75
,6
68

42
8

0
75
,7
68

52
8

0
B
ro
om

 P
la
yg
ro
up

25
,6
50

25
,6
50

25
,6
50

0
25
,6
50

0
0

25
,7
50

10
0

0
25
,6
50

0
0

25
,7
50

10
0

0
B
um

bl
e 
B
ee
s 
P
la
yg
ro
up

57
,4
56

57
,4
56

57
,4
56

0
57
,9
79

52
3

0
58
,0
79

62
3

0
57
,9
79

52
3

0
58
,0
79

62
3

0
B
us
y 
B
ee
s 
N
ur
se
ry
 G
ro
up

58
,4
82

58
,4
82

58
,4
82

0
58
,6
25

14
3

0
58
,7
25

24
3

0
58
,6
25

14
3

0
58
,7
25

24
3

0
B
us
y 
B
ee
s 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l P

la
yg
ro
up

32
,8
32

32
,8
32

32
,8
32

0
32
,8
32

0
0

32
,9
32

10
0

0
32
,8
32

0
0

32
,9
32

10
0

0
C
am

pt
on
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

37
,9
62

37
,9
62

37
,9
62

0
38
,0
10

48
0

38
,1
10

14
8

0
38
,0
10

48
0

38
,1
10

14
8

0
C
ed
ar
s 
D
ay
 N
ur
se
ry

44
,1
18

44
,1
18

44
,1
18

0
44
,2
13

95
0

44
,3
13

19
5

0
44
,2
13

95
0

44
,3
13

19
5

0
C
he
rr
y 
T
re
es
 D
ay
 N
ur
se
ry

31
,4
64

31
,4
64

31
,4
64

0
31
,5
12

48
0

31
,6
12

14
8

0
31
,5
12

48
0

31
,6
12

14
8

0
C
hi
m
ne
yt
ot
s 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

11
5,
93
8

11
5,
93
8

11
5,
93
8

0
11
6,
08
1

14
3

0
11
6,
18
1

24
3

0
11
6,
08
1

14
3

0
11
6,
18
1

24
3

0
C
ra
nf
ie
ld
 U
ni
ve
rs
ity
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

46
,5
12

46
,5
12

46
,5
12

0
46
,5
60

48
0

46
,6
60

14
8

0
46
,5
60

48
0

46
,6
60

14
8

0
D
ow

ns
id
e 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l P

la
yg
ro
up

41
,0
40

41
,0
40

41
,0
40

0
43
,0
83

2,
04

3
0

43
,1
83

2,
14

3
0

43
,0
83

2,
04

3
0

43
,1
83

2,
14

3
0

D
un
to
n 
V
ill
ag
e 
P
re
-S
ch
oo
l

37
,6
20

37
,6
20

37
,6
20

0
37
,6
68

48
0

37
,7
68

14
8

0
37
,6
68

48
0

37
,7
68

14
8

0
E
at
on
 B
ra
y 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l P

la
yg
ro
up

38
,3
04

38
,3
04

38
,3
04

0
38
,3
04

0
0

38
,4
04

10
0

0
38
,3
04

0
0

38
,4
04

10
0

0
E
ve
rt
on
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

15
,7
32

15
,7
32

15
,7
32

0
15
,7
32

0
0

15
,8
32

10
0

0
15
,7
32

0
0

15
,8
32

10
0

0
F
er
nw

oo
d 
S
ch
oo
l

39
,6
72

39
,6
72

39
,6
72

0
39
,6
72

0
0

39
,7
72

10
0

0
39
,6
72

0
0

39
,7
72

10
0

0
F
lit
w
ic
k 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

24
,9
66

24
,9
66

24
,9
66

0
24
,9
66

0
0

25
,0
66

10
0

0
24
,9
66

0
0

25
,0
66

10
0

0
F
oo
ts
te
ps
 P
riv
at
e 
D
ay
 N
ur
se
ry

14
,7
06

14
,7
06

14
,7
06

0
14
,8
96

19
0

0
14
,9
96

29
0

0
14
,8
96

19
0

0
14
,9
96

29
0

0
F
or
df
ie
ld
 N
ur
se
ry
 -
 R
ux
ox
 H
ou
se

7,
52
4

7,
52
4

7,
52
4

0
7,
52
4

0
0

7,
62
4

10
0

0
7,
52
4

0
0

7,
62
4

10
0

0
F
or
df
ie
ld
 N
ur
se
ry
 L
td

64
,9
80

64
,9
80

64
,9
80

0
64
,9
80

0
0

65
,0
80

10
0

0
64
,9
80

0
0

65
,0
80

10
0

0
G
re
en
fie
ld
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

34
,5
42

34
,5
42

34
,5
42

0
34
,5
42

0
0

34
,6
42

10
0

0
34
,5
42

0
0

34
,6
42

10
0

0
H
ar
lin
gt
on
 V
ill
ag
e 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

37
,9
62

37
,9
62

37
,9
62

0
38
,0
10

48
0

38
,1
10

14
8

0
38
,0
10

48
0

38
,1
10

14
8

0
H
ar
pe
r's
 N
ur
se
ry
 S
ch
oo
l

31
,4
64

31
,4
64

31
,4
64

0
31
,5
59

95
0

31
,6
59

19
5

0
31
,5
59

95
0

31
,6
59

19
5

0
H
ay
ne
s 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

34
,2
00

34
,2
00

34
,2
00

0
34
,4
38

23
8

0
34
,5
38

33
8

0
34
,4
38

23
8

0
34
,5
38

33
8

0
H
ea
d 
S
ta
rt
 D
ay
 N
ur
se
ry

32
,8
32

32
,8
32

32
,8
32

0
32
,9
75

14
3

0
33
,0
75

24
3

0
32
,9
75

14
3

0
33
,0
75

24
3

0
H
ea
th
 B
ar
n 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

22
,9
14

22
,9
14

22
,9
14

0
22
,9
14

0
0

23
,0
14

10
0

0
22
,9
14

0
0

23
,0
14

10
0

0
H
ed
ge
la
nd
s 
N
ur
se
ry
 (
1)

53
,3
52

53
,3
52

53
,3
52

0
53
,7
80

42
8

0
53
,8
80

52
8

0
53
,7
80

42
8

0
53
,8
80

52
8

0
H
ed
ge
la
nd
s 
N
ur
se
ry
 (
2)

23
,2
56

23
,2
56

23
,2
56

0
23
,2
56

0
0

23
,3
56

10
0

0
23
,2
56

0
0

23
,3
56

10
0

0
H
en
lo
w
 V
ill
ag
e 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

32
,8
32

32
,8
32

32
,8
32

0
32
,8
32

0
0

32
,9
32

10
0

0
32
,8
32

0
0

32
,9
32

10
0

0
H
oc
kl
iff
e 
S
tr
ee
t P

re
-s
ch
oo
l

15
,0
48

15
,0
48

15
,0
48

0
15
,1
91

14
3

0
15
,2
91

24
3

0
15
,1
91

14
3

0
15
,2
91

24
3

0
H
on
ey
su
ck
le
 N
ur
se
ry
 S
ch
oo
l

18
,4
68

18
,4
68

18
,4
68

0
18
,7
06

23
8

0
18
,8
06

33
8

0
18
,7
06

23
8

0
18
,8
06

33
8

0
Ic
kw

el
l P

re
-s
ch
oo
l

47
,8
80

47
,8
80

47
,8
80

0
47
,9
28

48
0

48
,0
28

14
8

0
47
,9
28

48
0

48
,0
28

14
8

0
K
en
sw

or
th
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

15
,0
48

15
,0
48

15
,0
48

0
15
,1
91

14
3

0
15
,2
91

24
3

0
15
,1
91

14
3

0
15
,2
91

24
3

0
La
dy
bi
rd
 P
re
-S
ch
oo
l

48
,9
06

48
,9
06

48
,9
06

0
48
,9
54

48
0

49
,0
54

14
8

0
48
,9
54

48
0

49
,0
54

14
8

0
Li
nd
en
 H
ou
se
 N
ur
se
ry

26
,3
34

26
,3
34

26
,3
34

0
26
,6
67

33
3

0
26
,7
67

43
3

0
26
,6
67

33
3

0
26
,7
67

43
3

0
Li
ns
la
de
 C
hi
ld
ca
re

33
,8
58

33
,8
58

33
,8
58

0
33
,9
06

48
0

34
,0
06

14
8

0
33
,9
06

48
0

34
,0
06

14
8

0
Li
ttl
e 
B
lu
eb
el
ls
 P
la
yg
ro
up

7,
18
2

7,
18
2

7,
18
2

0
7,
18
2

0
0

7,
28
2

10
0

0
7,
18
2

0
0

7,
28
2

10
0

0
Li
ttl
e 
H
av
en
 P
riv
at
e 
N
ur
se
ry

2,
39
4

2,
39
4

2,
39
4

0
2,
44
2

48
0

2,
54
2

14
8

0
2,
44
2

48
0

2,
54
2

14
8

0
Li
ttl
e 
Le
ar
ne
rs
 a
t K

in
gs
m
oo
r

33
,8
58

33
,8
58

33
,8
58

0
34
,2
86

42
8

0
34
,3
86

52
8

0
34
,2
86

42
8

0
34
,3
86

52
8

0
Li
ttl
e 
S
ta
rs
 N
ur
se
ry

9,
57
6

9,
57
6

9,
57
6

0
9,
67
1

95
0

9,
77
1

19
5

0
9,
67
1

95
0

9,
77
1

19
5

0
Lo
ve
rs
w
al
k 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

26
,6
76

26
,6
76

26
,6
76

0
27
,0
56

38
0

0
27
,1
56

48
0

0
27
,0
56

38
0

0
27
,1
56

48
0

0
M
au
ld
en
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l P

la
yg
ro
up

31
,8
06

31
,8
06

31
,8
06

0
31
,8
06

0
0

31
,9
06

10
0

0
31
,8
06

0
0

31
,9
06

10
0

0
M
en
tm
or
e 
R
oa
d 
U
nd
er
 5
's

17
,7
84

17
,7
84

17
,7
84

0
17
,7
84

0
0

17
,8
84

10
0

0
17
,7
84

0
0

17
,8
84

10
0

0
M
ep
pe
rs
ha
ll 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l P

la
yg
ro
up

34
,8
84

34
,8
84

34
,8
84

0
34
,8
84

0
0

34
,9
84

10
0

0
34
,8
84

0
0

34
,9
84

10
0

0
M
er
ry
 P
op
pe
ts
 N
ur
se
ry
 (
A
m
pt
hi
ll)

27
,7
02

27
,7
02

27
,7
02

0
27
,7
02

0
0

27
,8
02

10
0

0
27
,7
02

0
0

27
,8
02

10
0

0
M
er
ry
 P
op
pe
ts
 N
ur
se
ry
 (
F
lit
w
ic
k)

18
,4
68

18
,4
68

18
,4
68

0
18
,4
68

0
0

18
,5
68

10
0

0
18
,4
68

0
0

18
,5
68

10
0

0
M
in
i E

xp
lo
re
rs
 L
td

2,
39
4

2,
39
4

2,
39
4

0
2,
39
4

0
0

2,
49
4

10
0

0
2,
39
4

0
0

2,
49
4

10
0

0

4
E
:\m

od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
9\
1\
4\
A
I0
00
17
41
9\
04
C
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
B
ia
nd
B
ii0
.x
ls

Agenda Item 4
Page 32



S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

T
o

ta
l B

u
d

g
ed

 p
er

 M
o

d
el

S
in

g
le

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
o

rm
u

la
E

ar
ly

 Y
ea

rs
 R

ev
ie

w
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 B
(i

)

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

M
O

D
E

L
 D

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

 -
  M

F
G

 

M
O

D
E

L
 A

M
O

D
E

L
 B

M
O

D
E

L
 C

P
ro

vi
d

er
 / 

S
et

ti
n

g

09
-1

0 
A

ct
u

al
10

-1
1 

In
d

ic
at

iv
e

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

M
og
ge
rh
an
ge
r 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

23
,5
98

23
,5
98

23
,5
98

0
23
,6
46

48
0

23
,7
46

14
8

0
23
,6
46

48
0

23
,7
46

14
8

0
O
rc
ha
rd
 S
ch
oo
l &

 N
ur
se
ry

67
,0
32

67
,0
32

67
,0
32

0
67
,0
32

0
0

67
,1
32

10
0

0
67
,0
32

0
0

67
,1
32

10
0

0
O
S
C
A
R
 C
lu
b

38
,6
46

38
,6
46

38
,6
46

0
38
,6
94

48
0

38
,7
94

14
8

0
38
,6
94

48
0

38
,7
94

14
8

0
O
w
le
ts
 P
la
yg
ro
up

36
,5
94

36
,5
94

36
,5
94

0
36
,5
94

0
0

36
,6
94

10
0

0
36
,5
94

0
0

36
,6
94

10
0

0
P
ar
ks
id
e 
P
re
-S
ch
oo
l

8,
20
8

8,
20
8

8,
20
8

0
8,
63
6

42
8

0
8,
73
6

52
8

0
8,
63
6

42
8

0
8,
73
6

52
8

0
P
ho
en
ix
 S
ch
oo
l

26
,3
34

26
,3
34

26
,3
34

0
26
,3
34

0
0

26
,4
34

10
0

0
26
,3
34

0
0

26
,4
34

10
0

0
P
ip
pi
n 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

40
,3
56

40
,3
56

40
,3
56

0
40
,4
04

48
0

40
,5
04

14
8

0
40
,4
04

48
0

40
,5
04

14
8

0
P
op
pi
es
  N

ur
se
ry

97
,1
28

97
,1
28

97
,1
28

0
97
,2
23

95
0

97
,3
23

19
5

0
97
,2
23

95
0

97
,3
23

19
5

0
P
op
py
fie
ld
s 
N
ur
se
ry

10
,2
60

10
,2
60

10
,2
60

0
10
,2
60

0
0

10
,3
60

10
0

0
10
,2
60

0
0

10
,3
60

10
0

0
P
ot
to
n 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

47
,5
38

47
,5
38

47
,5
38

0
47
,5
38

0
0

47
,6
38

10
0

0
47
,5
38

0
0

47
,6
38

10
0

0
P
rio
ry
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

31
,8
06

31
,8
06

31
,8
06

0
32
,1
86

38
0

0
32
,2
86

48
0

0
32
,1
86

38
0

0
32
,2
86

48
0

0
P
ul
lo
xh
ill
 P
la
yg
ro
up

38
,3
04

38
,3
04

38
,3
04

0
38
,3
04

0
0

38
,4
04

10
0

0
38
,3
04

0
0

38
,4
04

10
0

0
R
A
F
 H
en
lo
w
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

33
,5
16

33
,5
16

33
,5
16

0
33
,5
16

0
0

33
,6
16

10
0

0
33
,5
16

0
0

33
,6
16

10
0

0
R
ai
nb
ow

 C
hi
ld
ca
re

27
,3
60

27
,3
60

27
,3
60

0
28
,0
25

66
5

0
28
,1
25

76
5

0
28
,0
25

66
5

0
28
,1
25

76
5

0
R
ai
nb
ow

 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

27
,7
02

27
,7
02

27
,7
02

0
27
,7
50

48
0

27
,8
50

14
8

0
27
,7
50

48
0

27
,8
50

14
8

0
S
am

ue
l W

hi
tb
re
ad
 N
ur
se
ry

43
,0
92

43
,0
92

43
,0
92

0
43
,2
35

14
3

0
43
,3
35

24
3

0
43
,2
35

14
3

0
43
,3
35

24
3

0
S
an
dy
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

15
,0
48

15
,0
48

15
,0
48

0
15
,2
38

19
0

0
15
,3
38

29
0

0
15
,2
38

19
0

0
15
,3
38

29
0

0
S
hi
lli
ng
to
n 
U
nd
er
 5
s

32
,8
32

32
,8
32

32
,8
32

0
32
,8
80

48
0

32
,9
80

14
8

0
32
,8
80

48
0

32
,9
80

14
8

0
S
ils
oe
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

35
,2
26

35
,2
26

35
,2
26

0
35
,2
74

48
0

35
,3
74

14
8

0
35
,2
74

48
0

35
,3
74

14
8

0
S
lip
 E
nd
 P
la
yg
ro
up

3,
42
0

3,
42
0

3,
42
0

0
3,
42
0

0
0

3,
52
0

10
0

0
3,
42
0

0
0

3,
52
0

10
0

0
S
ou
th
co
tt 
P
la
yg
ro
up

13
,6
80

13
,6
80

13
,6
80

0
13
,7
28

48
0

13
,8
28

14
8

0
13
,7
28

48
0

13
,8
28

14
8

0
S
ou
th
si
de
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l N

ur
se
ry
 L
td
.

50
,2
74

50
,2
74

50
,2
74

0
50
,6
07

33
3

0
50
,7
07

43
3

0
50
,6
07

33
3

0
50
,7
07

43
3

0
S
t C

hr
is
to
ph
er
's
 C
ar
e 
C
lu
b

70
,1
10

70
,1
10

70
,1
10

0
70
,2
05

95
0

70
,3
05

19
5

0
70
,2
05

95
0

70
,3
05

19
5

0
S
t F

ra
nc
is
 K
in
de
rg
ar
te
n

58
,1
40

58
,1
40

58
,1
40

0
58
,3
30

19
0

0
58
,4
30

29
0

0
58
,3
30

19
0

0
58
,4
30

29
0

0
S
t G

eo
rg
e'
s 
S
ch
oo
l

48
,2
22

48
,2
22

48
,2
22

0
49
,0
30

80
8

0
49
,1
30

90
8

0
49
,0
30

80
8

0
49
,1
30

90
8

0
S
t K

at
he
rin
e'
s 
P
la
yg
ro
up

4,
10
4

4,
10
4

4,
10
4

0
4,
10
4

0
0

4,
20
4

10
0

0
4,
10
4

0
0

4,
20
4

10
0

0
S
to
nd
on
 S
to
m
pe
rs
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

31
,1
22

31
,1
22

31
,1
22

0
31
,1
22

0
0

31
,2
22

10
0

0
31
,1
22

0
0

31
,2
22

10
0

0
S
tu
dh
am

 S
ch
oo
l P

re
-s
ch
oo
l

13
,3
38

13
,3
38

13
,3
38

0
13
,4
33

95
0

13
,5
33

19
5

0
13
,4
33

95
0

13
,5
33

19
5

0
T
ed
di
es
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

16
,0
74

16
,0
74

16
,0
74

0
16
,0
74

0
0

16
,1
74

10
0

0
16
,0
74

0
0

16
,1
74

10
0

0
T
he
 M
ar
y 
B
as
se
tt 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

53
,0
10

53
,0
10

53
,0
10

0
53
,5
80

57
0

0
53
,6
80

67
0

0
53
,5
80

57
0

0
53
,6
80

67
0

0
T
he
 W

oo
dl
an
ds

56
,4
30

56
,4
30

56
,4
30

0
56
,4
30

0
0

56
,5
30

10
0

0
56
,4
30

0
0

56
,5
30

10
0

0
T
ils
w
or
th
 M
on
te
ss
or
i S

ch
oo
l

15
,3
90

15
,3
90

15
,3
90

0
15
,3
90

0
0

15
,4
90

10
0

0
15
,3
90

0
0

15
,4
90

10
0

0
T
od
di
ng
to
n 
C
hi
ld
ca
re

36
,2
52

36
,2
52

36
,2
52

0
36
,2
52

0
0

36
,3
52

10
0

0
36
,2
52

0
0

36
,3
52

10
0

0
T
ot
te
rn
ho
e 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

14
,0
22

14
,0
22

14
,0
22

0
14
,0
70

48
0

14
,1
70

14
8

0
14
,0
70

48
0

14
,1
70

14
8

0
T
oy
bo
x 
D
ay
 N
ur
se
ry
 (
B
ig
gl
es
w
ad
e)

38
,3
04

38
,3
04

38
,3
04

0
38
,3
99

95
0

38
,4
99

19
5

0
38
,3
99

95
0

38
,4
99

19
5

0
T
oy
bo
x 
D
ay
 N
ur
se
ry
 (
S
an
dy
)

20
,5
20

20
,5
20

20
,5
20

0
20
,6
15

95
0

20
,7
15

19
5

0
20
,6
15

95
0

20
,7
15

19
5

0
T
ud
or
 C
ou
rt
 D
ay
 N
ur
se
ry

18
,4
68

18
,4
68

18
,4
68

0
18
,4
68

0
0

18
,5
68

10
0

0
18
,4
68

0
0

18
,5
68

10
0

0
T
w
in
kl
e 
P
la
yg
ro
up

6,
15
6

6,
15
6

6,
15
6

0
6,
48
9

33
3

0
6,
58
9

43
3

0
6,
48
9

33
3

0
6,
58
9

43
3

0
V
an
dy
ke
 R
oa
d 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

35
,5
68

35
,5
68

35
,5
68

0
36
,0
91

52
3

0
36
,1
91

62
3

0
36
,0
91

52
3

0
36
,1
91

62
3

0
W
at
lin
g 
F
or
es
t C

lu
b

32
,4
90

32
,4
90

32
,4
90

0
33
,0
13

52
3

0
33
,1
13

62
3

0
33
,0
13

52
3

0
33
,1
13

62
3

0
W
es
to
ni
ng
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

26
,3
34

26
,3
34

26
,3
34

0
26
,3
34

0
0

26
,4
34

10
0

0
26
,3
34

0
0

26
,4
34

10
0

0
W
in
dm

ill
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

36
,2
52

36
,2
52

36
,2
52

0
36
,3
00

48
0

36
,4
00

14
8

0
36
,3
00

48
0

36
,4
00

14
8

0
W
oo
de
nt
op
s 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

38
,6
46

38
,6
46

38
,6
46

0
38
,6
46

0
0

38
,7
46

10
0

0
38
,6
46

0
0

38
,7
46

10
0

0
W
re
st
lin
gw

or
th
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

13
,6
80

13
,6
80

13
,6
80

0
13
,6
80

0
0

13
,7
80

10
0

0
13
,6
80

0
0

13
,7
80

10
0

0
Z
ig
 Z
ag
 P
la
ys
ch
oo
l

27
,0
18

27
,0
18

27
,0
18

0
27
,0
18

0
0

27
,1
18

10
0

0
27
,0
18

0
0

27
,1
18

10
0

0
T

o
ta

l P
V

I
3,

54
7,

90
8

3,
54

7,
90

8
3,

54
7,

90
8

0
3,

56
2,

60
7

14
,6

99
0

3,
57

3,
10

7
25

,1
99

0
3,

56
2,

60
7

14
,6

99
0

3,
57

3,
10

7
25

,1
99

0

5
E
:\m

od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
9\
1\
4\
A
I0
00
17
41
9\
04
C
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
B
ia
nd
B
ii0
.x
ls

Agenda Item 4
Page 33



S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

T
o

ta
l B

u
d

g
ed

 p
er

 M
o

d
el

S
in

g
le

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 F
o

rm
u

la
E

ar
ly

 Y
ea

rs
 R

ev
ie

w
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 B
(i

)

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

 
M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
M

F
G

M
O

D
E

L
 D

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

 -
  M

F
G

 

M
O

D
E

L
 A

M
O

D
E

L
 B

M
O

D
E

L
 C

P
ro

vi
d

er
 / 

S
et

ti
n

g

09
-1

0 
A

ct
u

al
10

-1
1 

In
d

ic
at

iv
e

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

N
u

rs
er

y 
(4

)
1,

25
5,

59
4

1,
29

5,
51

6
1,

17
0,

63
2

18
2,

29
5

1,
19

6,
33

1
25

,6
99

32
9,

46
7

1,
20

1,
45

8
30

,8
26

36
7,

90
5

1,
16

7,
81

7
-2

,8
15

56
0,

95
5

1,
17

4,
74

1
4,

10
9

60
1,

19
0

L
o

w
er

s 
(9

6)
48

,4
22

,1
79

50
,6

17
,4

04
50

,2
09

,9
94

11
4,

75
8

50
,4

57
,4

28
24

7,
43

4
11

3,
87

8
50

,3
16

,1
24

10
6,

13
0

11
8,

47
0

50
,4

57
,4

28
24

7,
43

4
11

3,
87

8
50

,3
16

,1
24

10
6,

13
0

11
8,

47
0

P
V

I (
10

5)
3,

54
7,

90
8

3,
54

7,
90

8
3,

54
7,

90
8

0
3,

56
2,

60
7

14
,6

99
0

3,
57

3,
10

7
25

,1
99

0
3,

56
2,

60
7

14
,6

99
0

3,
57

3,
10

7
25

,1
99

0

59
0

11
,2

03
59

0
11

,2
03

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 t
o

 t
o

ta
l m

o
ve

m
en

ts
.

1
D

if
fe

re
n

t 
m

et
h

o
d

s 
o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g

10
-1
1 
R
ec
al
cu
la
te
 In
di
ca
tiv
e 
us
es
 A
W
P
U
 

N
ew

 E
Y
S
F
F
 u
se
s 
a 
ra
te
 p
er
 u
pt
ak
e 
ho
ur
.

2
D

if
fe

re
n

t 
m

et
h

o
d

s 
o

n
 c

al
cu

la
ti

n
g

 o
f 

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
 P

u
p

il 
L

ed
 f

u
n

d
in

g
10
-1
1 
R
ec
al
cu
la
te
d 
In
di
ca
tiv
e 
al
lo
ca
te
s 
an
 A
dd
 S
um

m
er
 T
er
m
 fu
nd
in
g 
fo
r 
3+

 a
nd
 3
+H

 w
er
e 
ap
pr
op
ria
te
.

N
ew

 E
Y
S
F
F
 h
ol
d 
th
is
 in
to
 c
on
tin
ge
nc
y 
po
t f
or
 d
is
tr
ib
ut
in
g 
te
rm

ly
.

10
-1
1 
R
ec
al
cu
la
te
 In
di
ca
tiv
e 
al
lo
ca
te
s 
a 
pe
r 
pu
pi
l r
at
e 
fo
r 
in
su
ra
nc
e 
fo
r 
3+

 a
nd
 3
+H

.
E
Y
S
F
F
 d
o 
no
t a
llo
ca
te
 a
ny
 in
su
ra
nc
e 
fo
r 
3+

 a
nd
 3
+H

.

3
D

if
fe

re
n

t 
m

et
h

o
d

s 
an

d
 d

at
a 

u
se

d
 t

o
 c

al
cu

la
te

 S
o

ci
al

 D
ep

ri
va

ti
o

n
10
-1
1 
R
ec
al
cu
la
te
 In
di
ca
tiv
e 
us
es
 A
C
O
R
N
 d
at
a 
an
d 
a 
th
re
sh
ol
d 
of
 2
0%

 fo
r 
ca
te
go
ry
 4
 a
nd
 5
 w
hi
ch
 a
re
 w
ei
gh
te
d 
1 
fo
r 
ca
te
go
ry
 4
 a
nd
 3
 fo
r 
ca
te
go
ry
 5
.

E
Y
S
F
F
 u
se
s 
ID
M
 d
at
a 
an
d 
us
es
 d
iff
er
en
t m

et
ho
d 
fo
r 
ca
lc
ul
at
in
g 
S
oc
ia
l D

ep
riv
at
io
n.

4
D

if
fe

re
n

t 
M

F
G

 
B
ec
au
se
 o
f t
he
 a
bo
ve
 d
iff
er
en
ce
s 
th
er
e 
w
ill
 (
w
er
e 
ap
pr
op
ria
te
) 
be
 d
iff
er
en
ce
s 
on
 M
F
G
 .

6
E
:\m

od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
9\
1\
4\
A
I0
00
17
41
9\
04
C
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
B
ia
nd
B
ii0
.x
ls

Agenda Item 4
Page 34



S
u
m

m
ar

y 
o
f 
E

ar
ly

 Y
ea

rs
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 e

le
m

en
t 
o
n
ly

S
in

g
le

 F
u
n
d
in

g
 F

o
rm

u
la

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 R
ev

ie
w

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

(i
i)

T
O

T
A

L
 

(E
Y

 O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

T
O

T
A

L
 (E

Y
 

O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

T
O

T
A

L
 

(E
Y

 O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

T
O

T
A

L
 (E

Y
 

O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

A
rle
se
y

25
3,
34
8

26
0,
10
0

23
6,
44
5

30
,7
02

23
8,
63
9

2,
19

4
37
,3
40

23
9,
01
9

2,
57

4
45
,2
29

23
6,
81
4

36
9

10
0,
51
6

23
7,
27
1

82
6

10
8,
48
1

T
he
 L
aw

ns
39
9,
78
1

41
5,
70
1

35
1,
70
4

16
,6
68

38
2,
19
3

30
,4

89
12
7,
81
2

38
4,
59
1

32
,8

87
14
0,
59
9

36
6,
20
7

14
,5

03
17
6,
82
6

37
0,
20
3

18
,4

99
19
1,
21
2

W
es
tfi
el
d 
N
ur
se
ry

36
2,
42
3

37
2,
62
7

34
7,
28
6

97
,7
45

34
2,
46
4

-4
,8

22
12
5,
22
8

34
4,
19
9

-3
,0

86
13
5,
26
2

33
4,
82
9

-1
2,

45
6

18
2,
59
4

33
6,
56
5

-1
0,

72
1

19
2,
62
8

W
ill
ow

24
0,
04
1

24
7,
08
8

23
5,
19
7

37
,1
80

23
3,
03
5

-2
,1

62
39
,0
87

23
3,
64
9

-1
,5

49
46
,8
14

22
9,
96
6

-5
,2

31
10
1,
01
8

23
0,
70
3

-4
,4

95
10
8,
86
9

T
o
ta

l N
u
rs

er
y

1,
25

5,
59

4
1,

29
5,

51
6

1,
17

0,
63

2
18

2,
29

5
1,
19
6,
33
1

25
,6

99
32

9,
46

7
1,

20
1,

45
8

30
,8

26
36

7,
90

5
1,

16
7,

81
7

-2
,8

15
56

0,
95

5
1,

17
4,

74
1

4,
10

9
60

1,
19

0

P
ro

vi
d
er

 / 
S

et
ti
n
g

09
-1

0 
A

ct
u
al

 (
E

Y
 

O
n
ly

)

10
-1

1 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e 
(E

Y
 O

n
ly

)

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

 (
E

Y
 

O
n
ly

)

M
O

D
E

L
 D

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

 -
  T

o
ta

l 
M

F
G

M
O

D
E

L
 A

M
O

D
E

L
 B

M
O

D
E

L
 C

1
E
:\m

od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
9\
1\
4\
A
I0
00
17
41
9\
04
C
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
B
ia
nd
B
iix
1x
0.
xl
s

Agenda Item 4
Page 35



S
u
m

m
ar

y 
o
f 
E

ar
ly

 Y
ea

rs
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 e

le
m

en
t 
o
n
ly

S
in

g
le

 F
u
n
d
in

g
 F

o
rm

u
la

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 R
ev

ie
w

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

(i
i)

T
O

T
A

L
 

(E
Y

 O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

T
O

T
A

L
 (E

Y
 

O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

T
O

T
A

L
 

(E
Y

 O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

T
O

T
A

L
 (E

Y
 

O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

P
ro

vi
d
er

 / 
S

et
ti
n
g

09
-1

0 
A

ct
u
al

 (
E

Y
 

O
n
ly

)

10
-1

1 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e 
(E

Y
 O

n
ly

)

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

 (
E

Y
 

O
n
ly

)

M
O

D
E

L
 D

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

 -
  T

o
ta

l 
M

F
G

M
O

D
E

L
 A

M
O

D
E

L
 B

M
O

D
E

L
 C

L
o
w

er
s 

w
it
h
 E

Y
 p

u
p
il 

(a
ff
ec

te
d
)

A
ll 
S
ai
nt
s

24
,1
48

31
,5
26

15
,7
62

0
13
,1
33

-2
,6

29
0

12
,0
39

-3
,7

23
0

13
,1
33

-2
,6

29
0

12
,0
39

-3
,7

23
0

A
rd
le
y 
H
ill

0
0

0
0

61
8

61
8

0
61
8

61
8

0
61
8

61
8

0
61
8

61
8

0
A
sh
to
n 
S
t P

et
er
's

0
0

0
0

57
0

57
0

0
57
0

57
0

0
57
0

57
0

0
57
0

57
0

0
A
sp
le
y 
G
ui
se

13
,3
23

24
,7
58

8,
02
4

0
8,
20
8

18
4

0
7,
52
4

-5
00

0
8,
20
8

18
4

0
7,
52
4

-5
00

0
B
ea
ud
es
er
t

38
,8
77

13
,7
00

26
,3
82

25
,0
34

20
,4
59

-5
,9

23
30
,9
01

18
,8
17

-7
,5

65
32
,5
43

20
,4
59

-5
,9

23
30
,9
01

18
,8
17

-7
,5

65
32
,5
43

B
ee
cr
of
t

23
,8
07

13
,3
66

19
,7
07

0
11
,2
28

-8
,4

79
0

10
,4
07

-9
,3

01
0

11
,2
28

-8
,4

79
0

10
,4
07

-9
,3

01
0

C
ad
di
ng
to
n 
V
ill
ag
e

50
,8
40

70
,0
65

38
,8
01

0
55
,8
14

17
,0

13
0

51
,1
62

12
,3

61
0

55
,8
14

17
,0

13
0

51
,1
62

12
,3

61
0

C
ha
lto
n

6,
92
2

11
,5
47

4,
85
4

0
3,
37
8

-1
,4

76
0

3,
10
4

-1
,7

50
0

3,
37
8

-1
,4

76
0

3,
10
4

-1
,7

50
0

C
hu
rc
h 
E
nd

0
0

0
0

48
48

0
48

48
0

48
48

0
48

48
0

C
lip
st
on
e 
B
ro
ok

38
,0
60

26
,0
46

12
,5
98

0
8,
73
1

-3
,8

67
0

8,
04
7

-4
,5

51
0

8,
73
1

-3
,8

67
0

8,
04
7

-4
,5

51
0

D
er
w
en
t

29
,6
64

12
,9
99

18
,0
19

0
18
,0
58

39
0

16
,5
53

-1
,4

66
0

18
,0
58

39
0

16
,5
53

-1
,4

66
0

D
ov
er
y 
D
ow

n
0

0
0

0
48

48
0

48
48

0
48

48
0

48
48

0
D
ow

ns
id
e

30
,9
35

9,
71
3

21
,3
38

0
19
,3
88

-1
,9

50
0

17
,8
83

-3
,4

56
0

19
,3
88

-1
,9

50
0

17
,8
83

-3
,4

56
0

D
un
to
n

0
0

0
0

95
95

0
95

95
0

95
95

0
95

95
0

E
at
on
 B
ra
y

37
,6
76

25
,6
71

20
,5
63

3,
76
5

26
,2
66

5,
70

3
0

24
,0
77

3,
51

3
17
6

26
,2
66

5,
70

3
0

24
,0
77

3,
51

3
17
6

E
ve
rs
ho
lt

9,
41
9

91
3

4,
43
6

6,
46
3

5,
47
2

1,
03

6
5,
67
8

5,
01
6

58
0

6,
13
4

5,
47
2

1,
03

6
5,
67
8

5,
01
6

58
0

6,
13
4

F
ai
rf
ie
ld
 P
ar
k

30
,1
12

6,
85
0

53
,5
08

0
72
,3
26

18
,8

18
0

66
,3
06

12
,7

98
0

72
,3
26

18
,8

18
0

66
,3
06

12
,7

98
0

F
lit
w
ic
k

31
,4
34

52
,2
55

19
,8
46

0
18
,0
58

-1
,7

88
0

16
,5
53

-3
,2

93
0

18
,0
58

-1
,7

88
0

16
,5
53

-3
,2

93
0

G
ot
hi
c 
M
ed
e

0
0

0
0

19
0

19
0

0
19
0

19
0

0
19
0

19
0

0
19
0

19
0

0
G
ra
ve
nh
ur
st

2,
13
4

6,
60
5

1,
76
1

1,
24
5

1,
64
2

-1
19

1,
35
6

1,
50
5

-2
57

1,
49
4

1,
64
2

-1
19

1,
35
6

1,
50
5

-2
57

1,
49
4

G
re
en
fie
ld

12
,5
96

15
,2
00

9,
56
4

0
4,
92
5

-4
,6

39
0

4,
51
5

-5
,0

49
0

4,
92
5

-4
,6

39
0

4,
51
5

-5
,0

49
0

G
re
en
le
as

68
,1
39

57
,0
50

58
,1
71

0
83
,8
64

25
,6

93
0

76
,8
88

18
,7

17
0

83
,8
64

25
,6

93
0

76
,8
88

18
,7

17
0

H
ad
ria
n

0
0

0
0

48
48

0
48

48
0

48
48

0
48

48
0

H
aw

th
or
n 
P
ar
k

92
,1
70

83
,3
50

66
,8
67

0
87
,0
20

20
,1

53
0

80
,1
80

13
,3

13
0

87
,0
20

20
,1

53
0

80
,1
80

13
,3

13
0

H
oc
kl
iff
e

10
,9
27

9,
24
2

6,
86
4

10
,0
89

6,
56
6

-2
98

10
,2
38

6,
01
9

-8
44

10
,9
15

6,
56
6

-2
98

10
,2
38

6,
01
9

-8
44

10
,9
15

H
ou
gh
to
n 
C
on
qu
es
t

8,
85
0

9,
13
3

9,
13
3

0
48

-9
,0

85
0

48
-9

,0
85

0
48

-9
,0

85
0

48
-9

,0
85

0
H
ou
gh
to
n 
R
eg
is

60
,2
41

68
,5
19

52
,3
29

0
73
,8
18

21
,4

89
0

67
,9
37

15
,6

08
0

73
,8
18

21
,4

89
0

67
,9
37

15
,6

08
0

H
us
bo
rn
e 
C
ra
w
le
y

3,
34
2

3,
11
5

1,
97
0

0
1,
64
2

-3
28

0
1,
50
5

-4
66

0
1,
64
2

-3
28

0
1,
50
5

-4
66

0
Ic
kn
ie
ld

57
,5
94

78
,3
57

38
,6
76

0
59
,2
12

20
,5

36
0

54
,5
15

15
,8

38
0

59
,2
12

20
,5

36
0

54
,5
15

15
,8

38
0

Jo
hn
 D
on
ne

29
,5
06

27
,0
18

21
,2
02

1,
83
7

28
,5
91

7,
38

9
0

26
,2
08

5,
00

6
0

28
,5
91

7,
38

9
0

26
,2
08

5,
00

6
0

K
en
sw

or
th

15
,0
63

5,
91
4

11
,1
99

0
8,
20
8

-2
,9

91
0

7,
52
4

-3
,6

75
0

8,
20
8

-2
,9

91
0

7,
52
4

-3
,6

75
0

K
in
gs
m
oo
r

0
13
,2
11

0
0

33
3

33
3

0
33
3

33
3

0
33
3

33
3

0
33
3

33
3

0
La
bu
rn
um

50
,3
95

44
,7
89

37
,9
86

0
50
,2
46

12
,2

60
0

46
,1
42

8,
15

6
0

50
,2
46

12
,2

60
0

46
,1
42

8,
15

6
0

La
nc
ot

11
4,
91
4

84
,6
13

99
,2
80

0
11
7,
90
5

18
,6

25
0

10
8,
32
9

9,
04

9
0

11
7,
90
5

18
,6

25
0

10
8,
32
9

9,
04

9
0

La
ng
fo
rd

25
,6
57

12
,7
87

12
,7
87

0
0

-1
2,

78
7

4,
98
9

0
-1

2,
78

7
4,
98
9

0
-1

2,
78

7
4,
98
9

0
-1

2,
78

7
4,
98
9

La
rk
 R
is
e

86
,6
72

89
,8
19

64
,4
21

0
91
,6
54

27
,2

33
0

84
,1
08

19
,6

87
0

91
,6
54

27
,2

33
0

84
,1
08

19
,6

87
0

La
w
ns
id
e

39
9

0
0

0
38
0

38
0

0
38
0

38
0

0
38
0

38
0

0
38
0

38
0

0
Le
ed
on

15
,0
45

15
,5
27

15
,5
27

0
52
3

-1
5,

00
4

0
52
3

-1
5,

00
4

0
52
3

-1
5,

00
4

0
52
3

-1
5,

00
4

0
Li
ns
la
de

41
,7
22

26
,5
84

28
,9
27

0
38
,0
90

9,
16

3
0

34
,9
43

6,
01

6
0

38
,0
90

9,
16

3
0

34
,9
43

6,
01

6
0

M
ap
le
 T
re
e

66
,0
20

70
,5
31

51
,5
26

0
75
,3
05

23
,7

79
0

69
,0
70

17
,5

43
0

75
,3
05

23
,7

79
0

69
,0
70

17
,5

43
0

M
ar
y 
B
as
se
tt

29
,2
85

28
,7
01

18
,3
09

0
18
,6
76

36
7

0
17
,1
71

-1
,1

38
0

18
,6
76

36
7

0
17
,1
71

-1
,1

38
0

M
og
ge
rh
an
ge
r

0
4,
40
4

0
0

48
48

0
48

48
0

48
48

0
48

48
0

N
or
th
ill

6,
92
2

2,
74
0

4,
85
4

0
3,
33
1

-1
,5

23
0

3,
05
7

-1
,7

97
0

3,
33
1

-1
,5

23
0

3,
05
7

-1
,7

97
0

P
ot
to
n

0
0

0
0

48
48

0
48

48
0

48
48

0
48

48
0

P
ul
fo
rd

0
0

0
0

95
95

0
95

95
0

95
95

0
95

95
0

P
ul
lo
xh
ill

1,
77
0

6,
23
0

1,
82
7

0
0

-1
,8

27
0

0
-1

,8
27

0
0

-1
,8

27
0

0
-1

,8
27

0
R
ay
ns
fo
rd

24
,5
12

36
,3
05

14
,9
92

0
14
,7
74

-2
18

0
13
,5
43

-1
,4

48
0

14
,7
74

-2
18

0
13
,5
43

-1
,4

48
0

R
id
gm

on
t

7,
52
9

15
,5
33

7,
59
1

78
1

8,
20
8

61
7

11
7

7,
52
4

-6
7

80
1

8,
20
8

61
7

11
7

7,
52
4

-6
7

80
1

R
ob
er
t P

ee
l

61
,8
67

81
,2
89

50
,8
62

0
67
,7
07

16
,8

45
0

62
,2
35

11
,3

73
0

67
,7
07

16
,8

45
0

62
,2
35

11
,3

73
0

R
oe
cr
of
t

23
,5
10

6,
39
3

14
,8
48

0
13
,1
81

-1
,6

67
0

12
,0
87

-2
,7

62
0

13
,1
81

-1
,6

67
0

12
,0
87

-2
,7

62
0

R
us
se
ll

0
0

0
0

48
48

0
48

48
0

48
48

0
48

48
0

S
he
ffo
rd

75
,9
17

47
,5
97

53
,6
19

0
64
,4
50

10
,8

31
0

59
,1
15

5,
49

7
0

64
,4
50

10
,8

31
0

59
,1
15

5,
49

7
0

S
he
lto
n

7,
03
6

9,
34
5

3,
09
2

0
54
7

-2
,5

45
0

50
1

-2
,5

91
0

54
7

-2
,5

45
0

50
1

-2
,5

91
0

S
lip
 E
nd

21
,8
21

13
,7
68

24
,7
49

5,
96
1

34
,1
58

9,
40

9
0

31
,3
20

6,
57

1
0

34
,1
58

9,
40

9
0

31
,3
20

6,
57

1
0

S
ou
th
co
tt

61
,5
56

62
,4
00

36
,4
78

0
36
,8
94

41
6

0
33
,8
27

-2
,6

51
0

36
,8
94

41
6

0
33
,8
27

-2
,6

51
0

S
ou
th
ill

10
,8
26

4,
56
7

7,
73
7

0
4,
92
5

-2
,8

12
0

4,
51
5

-3
,2

22
0

4,
92
5

-2
,8

12
0

4,
51
5

-3
,2

22
0

2
E
:\m

od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
9\
1\
4\
A
I0
00
17
41
9\
04
C
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
B
ia
nd
B
iix
1x
0.
xl
s

Agenda Item 4
Page 36



S
u
m

m
ar

y 
o
f 
E

ar
ly

 Y
ea

rs
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 e

le
m

en
t 
o
n
ly

S
in

g
le

 F
u
n
d
in

g
 F

o
rm

u
la

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 R
ev

ie
w

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

(i
i)

T
O

T
A

L
 

(E
Y

 O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

T
O

T
A

L
 (E

Y
 

O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

T
O

T
A

L
 

(E
Y

 O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

T
O

T
A

L
 (E

Y
 

O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

P
ro

vi
d
er

 / 
S

et
ti
n
g

09
-1

0 
A

ct
u
al

 (
E

Y
 

O
n
ly

)

10
-1

1 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e 
(E

Y
 O

n
ly

)

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

 (
E

Y
 

O
n
ly

)

M
O

D
E

L
 D

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

 -
  T

o
ta

l 
M

F
G

M
O

D
E

L
 A

M
O

D
E

L
 B

M
O

D
E

L
 C

S
ou
th
la
nd
s

37
,4
71

47
,4
77

23
,7
86

0
21
,4
84

-2
,3

02
0

19
,7
06

-4
,0

80
0

21
,4
84

-2
,3

02
0

19
,7
06

-4
,0

80
0

S
t A

nd
re
w
's

78
,3
43

18
,1
00

66
,5
08

0
75
,3
94

8,
88

6
0

69
,1
47

2,
63

9
0

75
,3
94

8,
88

6
0

69
,1
47

2,
63

9
0

S
t C

hr
is
to
ph
er
's

26
6

0
0

0
48

48
0

48
48

0
48

48
0

48
48

0
S
t G

eo
rg
e'
s

18
,3
27

13
,1
17

16
,1
99

0
8,
73
1

-7
,4

68
0

8,
04
7

-8
,1

52
0

8,
73
1

-7
,4

68
0

8,
04
7

-8
,1

52
0

S
t M

ar
y'
s 
(S
to
tfo
ld
)

52
,9
27

50
,2
17

32
,8
67

0
31
,3
33

-1
,5

34
0

28
,7
34

-4
,1

33
0

31
,3
33

-1
,5

34
0

28
,7
34

-4
,1

33
0

S
t M

ar
y'
s 
(D
un
st
ab
le
)

50
,4
50

36
,2
81

41
,6
27

0
44
,7
36

3,
10

9
0

41
,2
02

-4
25

0
44
,7
36

3,
10

9
0

41
,2
02

-4
25

0
S
t S

w
ith
un
's

47
,6
00

33
,7
28

40
,0
55

0
52
,9
59

12
,9

04
0

48
,5
82

8,
52

7
0

52
,9
59

12
,9

04
0

48
,5
82

8,
52

7
0

S
t V

in
ce
nt
's

43
,6
22

36
,0
23

10
,4
77

0
10
,7
47

27
0

0
10
,1
99

-2
78

0
10
,7
47

27
0

0
10
,1
99

-2
78

0
S
tu
dh
am

0
0

0
7,
98
8

95
95

7,
89
3

95
95

7,
89
3

95
95

7,
89
3

95
95

7,
89
3

S
un
do
n

20
,3
93

14
,7
54

18
,5
78

0
22
,9
82

4,
40

4
0

21
,0
66

2,
48

8
0

22
,9
82

4,
40

4
0

21
,0
66

2,
48

8
0

T
em

pl
ef
ie
ld

23
,7
85

26
,7
47

16
,5
31

0
11
,5
86

-4
,9

45
0

10
,6
28

-5
,9

03
0

11
,5
86

-4
,9

45
0

10
,6
28

-5
,9

03
0

T
ho
m
as
 J
oh
ns
on

29
,7
05

36
,3
21

24
,0
57

0
32
,2
85

8,
22

8
0

29
,5
95

5,
53

8
0

32
,2
85

8,
22

8
0

29
,5
95

5,
53

8
0

T
ho
m
as
 W

hi
te
he
ad
 

64
,6
53

84
,4
05

56
,1
64

0
73
,1
27

16
,9

63
0

67
,3
82

11
,2

18
0

73
,1
27

16
,9

63
0

67
,3
82

11
,2

18
0

T
ho
rn
hi
ll

59
,8
68

34
,8
59

44
,7
21

0
50
,1
93

5,
47

2
0

46
,3
63

1,
64

2
0

50
,1
93

5,
47

2
0

46
,3
63

1,
64

2
0

T
ith
e 
F
ar
m

70
,3
14

63
,1
78

66
,8
43

0
77
,2
65

10
,4

22
0

71
,2
46

4,
40

4
0

77
,2
65

10
,4

22
0

71
,2
46

4,
40

4
0

T
od
di
ng
to
n 
S
t G

eo
rg
e

75
,1
54

83
,9
61

52
,5
67

0
62
,3
81

9,
81

4
0

57
,1
82

4,
61

5
0

62
,3
81

9,
81

4
0

57
,1
82

4,
61

5
0

T
ot
te
rn
ho
e

4,
93
1

11
,5
47

3,
79
7

0
1,
73
7

-2
,0

60
0

1,
60
0

-2
,1

97
0

1,
73
7

-2
,0

60
0

1,
60
0

-2
,1

97
0

W
at
lin
g

0
0

0
0

57
0

57
0

0
57
0

57
0

0
57
0

57
0

0
57
0

57
0

0
W
es
to
ni
ng

13
,8
44

5,
48
0

9,
70
7

0
6,
56
6

-3
,1

41
0

6,
01
9

-3
,6

88
0

6,
56
6

-3
,1

41
0

6,
01
9

-3
,6

88
0

W
ob
ur
n

10
,3
04

8,
43
2

11
,3
30

3,
24
7

9,
84
9

-1
,4

81
4,
58
8

9,
02
9

-2
,3

01
5,
40
8

9,
84
9

-1
,4

81
4,
58
8

9,
02
9

-2
,3

01
5,
40
8

T
o
ta

l L
o
w

er
s 

(a
ff
ec

te
d
)

2,
16

1,
10

5
1,

94
4,

67
2

1,
62

6,
80

2
66

,4
10

1,
87

3,
26

6
24

6,
46

4
65

,7
65

1,
72

1,
35

0
94

,5
48

70
,3

58
1,

87
3,

26
6

24
6,

46
4

65
,7

65
1,

72
1,

35
0

94
,5

48
70

,3
58

76 L
o
w

er
s 

w
it
h
o
u
t 
 E

Y
 p

u
p
il 

(n
o
t 
af

fe
ct

ed
)

C
al
de
co
te

0
0

0
3,
04
5

0
0

3,
04
5

0
0

3,
04
5

0
0

3,
04
5

0
0

3,
04
5

C
am

pt
on

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

C
ra
nf
ie
ld

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

E
ve
rt
on

0
0

0
3,
49
8

0
0

3,
49
8

0
0

3,
49
8

0
0

3,
49
8

0
0

3,
49
8

H
ar
lin
gt
on

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

H
ay
ne
s

0
0

0
7,
53
0

0
0

7,
53
0

0
0

7,
53
0

0
0

7,
53
0

0
0

7,
53
0

H
ea
th
w
oo
d

0
0

0
1,
92
8

0
0

1,
92
8

0
0

1,
92
8

0
0

1,
92
8

0
0

1,
92
8

M
au
ld
en

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

M
ep
pe
rs
ha
ll

0
0

0
9,
34
4

0
0

9,
34
4

0
0

9,
34
4

0
0

9,
34
4

0
0

9,
34
4

R
am

se
y 
M
an
or

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
hi
lli
ng
to
n

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
ils
oe

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
t L
eo
na
rd
s

14
9

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
S
t M

ar
y'
s 
(C
lo
ph
ill
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
ta
nb
rid
ge

23
8

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
S
to
nd
on

0
0

0
4,
22
5

0
0

4,
36
8

0
0

4,
36
8

0
0

4,
36
8

0
0

4,
36
8

S
ut
to
n

11
4

0
0

7,
38
6

0
0

7,
38
6

0
0

7,
38
6

0
0

7,
38
6

0
0

7,
38
6

S
w
al
lo
w
fie
ld

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

T
he
 F
irs

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

W
re
st
lin
gw

or
th

1,
61
7

3,
17
4

0
11
,3
92

0
0

11
,3
92

0
0

11
,3
92

0
0

11
,3
92

0
0

11
,3
92

T
o
ta

l L
o
w

er
s 

(n
o
t 
af

fe
ct

ed
)

2,
11

8
3,

17
4

0
48

,3
48

0
0

48
,4

92
0

0
48

,4
92

0
0

48
,4

92
0

0
48

,4
92

20 T
o
ta

l L
o
w

er
s 

(9
6)

2,
16

3,
22

3
1,

94
7,

84
6

0
1,

62
6,

80
2

11
4,

75
8

0
1,

87
3,

26
6

24
6,

46
4

11
4,

25
8

0
1,

72
1,

35
0

94
,5

48
11

8,
85

0
0

1,
87

3,
26

6
24

6,
46

4
11

4,
25

8
0

1,
72

1,
35

0
94

,5
48

11
8,

85
0

0
0

3
E
:\m

od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
9\
1\
4\
A
I0
00
17
41
9\
04
C
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
B
ia
nd
B
iix
1x
0.
xl
s

Agenda Item 4
Page 37



S
u
m

m
ar

y 
o
f 
E

ar
ly

 Y
ea

rs
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 e

le
m

en
t 
o
n
ly

S
in

g
le

 F
u
n
d
in

g
 F

o
rm

u
la

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 R
ev

ie
w

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

(i
i)

T
O

T
A

L
 

(E
Y

 O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

T
O

T
A

L
 (E

Y
 

O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

T
O

T
A

L
 

(E
Y

 O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

T
O

T
A

L
 (E

Y
 

O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

P
ro

vi
d
er

 / 
S

et
ti
n
g

09
-1

0 
A

ct
u
al

 (
E

Y
 

O
n
ly

)

10
-1

1 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e 
(E

Y
 O

n
ly

)

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

 (
E

Y
 

O
n
ly

)

M
O

D
E

L
 D

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

 -
  T

o
ta

l 
M

F
G

M
O

D
E

L
 A

M
O

D
E

L
 B

M
O

D
E

L
 C

A
co
rn
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

66
,0
06

66
,0
06

66
,0
06

0
66
,0
06

0
0

66
,1
06

10
0

0
66
,0
06

0
0

66
,1
06

10
0

0
A
co
rn
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l (
S
he
ffo
rd
)

67
,0
32

67
,0
32

67
,0
32

0
67
,5
07

47
5

0
67
,6
07

57
5

0
67
,5
07

47
5

0
67
,6
07

57
5

0
A
cr
e 
W
oo
d 
D
ay
 N
ur
se
ry

16
,4
16

16
,4
16

16
,4
16

0
16
,5
59

14
3

0
16
,6
59

24
3

0
16
,5
59

14
3

0
16
,6
59

24
3

0
A
m
pt
hi
ll 
P
re
-S
ch
oo
l P

la
yg
ro
up

76
,9
50

76
,9
50

76
,9
50

0
76
,9
50

0
0

77
,0
50

10
0

0
76
,9
50

0
0

77
,0
50

10
0

0
A
rle
se
y 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

23
,9
40

23
,9
40

23
,9
40

0
24
,2
25

28
5

0
24
,3
25

38
5

0
24
,2
25

28
5

0
24
,3
25

38
5

0
A
sp
le
y 
G
ui
se
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

45
,1
44

45
,1
44

45
,1
44

0
45
,1
44

0
0

45
,2
44

10
0

0
45
,1
44

0
0

45
,2
44

10
0

0
A
un
tie
 S
hi
rle
ys

15
,0
48

15
,0
48

15
,0
48

0
15
,7
61

71
3

0
15
,8
61

81
3

0
15
,7
61

71
3

0
15
,8
61

81
3

0
B
ar
to
n-
Le
-C
la
y 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

32
,4
90

32
,4
90

32
,4
90

0
32
,4
90

0
0

32
,5
90

10
0

0
32
,4
90

0
0

32
,5
90

10
0

0
B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ire
 C
hi
ld
m
in
de
r 
N
et
w
or
k
16
,4
16

16
,4
16

16
,4
16

0
16
,4
16

0
0

16
,5
16

10
0

0
16
,4
16

0
0

16
,5
16

10
0

0
B
lu
eb
el
l H

ea
th
 P
la
yg
ro
up

33
,5
16

33
,5
16

33
,5
16

0
33
,6
59

14
3

0
33
,7
59

24
3

0
33
,6
59

14
3

0
33
,7
59

24
3

0
B
lu
eb
el
l P

la
yg
ro
up

66
,3
48

66
,3
48

66
,3
48

0
66
,4
91

14
3

0
66
,5
91

24
3

0
66
,4
91

14
3

0
66
,5
91

24
3

0
B
lu
eb
el
ls
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

23
,9
40

23
,9
40

23
,9
40

0
23
,9
40

0
0

24
,0
40

10
0

0
23
,9
40

0
0

24
,0
40

10
0

0
B
ra
m
bl
ey
 T
ot
s 
D
ay
 N
ur
se
ry

26
,6
76

26
,6
76

26
,6
76

0
26
,6
76

0
0

26
,7
76

10
0

0
26
,6
76

0
0

26
,7
76

10
0

0
B
rig
ha
m
 P
la
yg
ro
up

48
,5
64

48
,5
64

48
,5
64

0
48
,7
07

14
3

0
48
,8
07

24
3

0
48
,7
07

14
3

0
48
,8
07

24
3

0
B
ro
ok
la
nd
s 
P
la
yg
ro
up

75
,2
40

75
,2
40

75
,2
40

0
75
,6
68

42
8

0
75
,7
68

52
8

0
75
,6
68

42
8

0
75
,7
68

52
8

0
B
ro
om

 P
la
yg
ro
up

25
,6
50

25
,6
50

25
,6
50

0
25
,6
50

0
0

25
,7
50

10
0

0
25
,6
50

0
0

25
,7
50

10
0

0
B
um

bl
e 
B
ee
s 
P
la
yg
ro
up

57
,4
56

57
,4
56

57
,4
56

0
57
,9
79

52
3

0
58
,0
79

62
3

0
57
,9
79

52
3

0
58
,0
79

62
3

0
B
us
y 
B
ee
s 
N
ur
se
ry
 G
ro
up

58
,4
82

58
,4
82

58
,4
82

0
58
,6
25

14
3

0
58
,7
25

24
3

0
58
,6
25

14
3

0
58
,7
25

24
3

0
B
us
y 
B
ee
s 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l P

la
yg
ro
up

32
,8
32

32
,8
32

32
,8
32

0
32
,8
32

0
0

32
,9
32

10
0

0
32
,8
32

0
0

32
,9
32

10
0

0
C
am

pt
on
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

37
,9
62

37
,9
62

37
,9
62

0
38
,0
10

48
0

38
,1
10

14
8

0
38
,0
10

48
0

38
,1
10

14
8

0
C
ed
ar
s 
D
ay
 N
ur
se
ry

44
,1
18

44
,1
18

44
,1
18

0
44
,2
13

95
0

44
,3
13

19
5

0
44
,2
13

95
0

44
,3
13

19
5

0
C
he
rr
y 
T
re
es
 D
ay
 N
ur
se
ry

31
,4
64

31
,4
64

31
,4
64

0
31
,5
12

48
0

31
,6
12

14
8

0
31
,5
12

48
0

31
,6
12

14
8

0
C
hi
m
ne
yt
ot
s 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

11
5,
93
8

11
5,
93
8

11
5,
93
8

0
11
6,
08
1

14
3

0
11
6,
18
1

24
3

0
11
6,
08
1

14
3

0
11
6,
18
1

24
3

0
C
ra
nf
ie
ld
 U
ni
ve
rs
ity
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

46
,5
12

46
,5
12

46
,5
12

0
46
,5
60

48
0

46
,6
60

14
8

0
46
,5
60

48
0

46
,6
60

14
8

0
D
ow

ns
id
e 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l P

la
yg
ro
up

41
,0
40

41
,0
40

41
,0
40

0
43
,0
83

2,
04

3
0

43
,1
83

2,
14

3
0

43
,0
83

2,
04

3
0

43
,1
83

2,
14

3
0

D
un
to
n 
V
ill
ag
e 
P
re
-S
ch
oo
l

37
,6
20

37
,6
20

37
,6
20

0
37
,6
68

48
0

37
,7
68

14
8

0
37
,6
68

48
0

37
,7
68

14
8

0
E
at
on
 B
ra
y 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l P

la
yg
ro
up

38
,3
04

38
,3
04

38
,3
04

0
38
,3
04

0
0

38
,4
04

10
0

0
38
,3
04

0
0

38
,4
04

10
0

0
E
ve
rt
on
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

15
,7
32

15
,7
32

15
,7
32

0
15
,7
32

0
0

15
,8
32

10
0

0
15
,7
32

0
0

15
,8
32

10
0

0
F
er
nw

oo
d 
S
ch
oo
l

39
,6
72

39
,6
72

39
,6
72

0
39
,6
72

0
0

39
,7
72

10
0

0
39
,6
72

0
0

39
,7
72

10
0

0
F
lit
w
ic
k 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

24
,9
66

24
,9
66

24
,9
66

0
24
,9
66

0
0

25
,0
66

10
0

0
24
,9
66

0
0

25
,0
66

10
0

0
F
oo
ts
te
ps
 P
riv
at
e 
D
ay
 N
ur
se
ry

14
,7
06

14
,7
06

14
,7
06

0
14
,8
96

19
0

0
14
,9
96

29
0

0
14
,8
96

19
0

0
14
,9
96

29
0

0
F
or
df
ie
ld
 N
ur
se
ry
 -
 R
ux
ox
 H
ou
se

7,
52
4

7,
52
4

7,
52
4

0
7,
52
4

0
0

7,
62
4

10
0

0
7,
52
4

0
0

7,
62
4

10
0

0
F
or
df
ie
ld
 N
ur
se
ry
 L
td

64
,9
80

64
,9
80

64
,9
80

0
64
,9
80

0
0

65
,0
80

10
0

0
64
,9
80

0
0

65
,0
80

10
0

0
G
re
en
fie
ld
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

34
,5
42

34
,5
42

34
,5
42

0
34
,5
42

0
0

34
,6
42

10
0

0
34
,5
42

0
0

34
,6
42

10
0

0
H
ar
lin
gt
on
 V
ill
ag
e 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

37
,9
62

37
,9
62

37
,9
62

0
38
,0
10

48
0

38
,1
10

14
8

0
38
,0
10

48
0

38
,1
10

14
8

0
H
ar
pe
r's
 N
ur
se
ry
 S
ch
oo
l

31
,4
64

31
,4
64

31
,4
64

0
31
,5
59

95
0

31
,6
59

19
5

0
31
,5
59

95
0

31
,6
59

19
5

0
H
ay
ne
s 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

34
,2
00

34
,2
00

34
,2
00

0
34
,4
38

23
8

0
34
,5
38

33
8

0
34
,4
38

23
8

0
34
,5
38

33
8

0
H
ea
d 
S
ta
rt
 D
ay
 N
ur
se
ry

32
,8
32

32
,8
32

32
,8
32

0
32
,9
75

14
3

0
33
,0
75

24
3

0
32
,9
75

14
3

0
33
,0
75

24
3

0
H
ea
th
 B
ar
n 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

22
,9
14

22
,9
14

22
,9
14

0
22
,9
14

0
0

23
,0
14

10
0

0
22
,9
14

0
0

23
,0
14

10
0

0
H
ed
ge
la
nd
s 
N
ur
se
ry
 (
1)

53
,3
52

53
,3
52

53
,3
52

0
53
,7
80

42
8

0
53
,8
80

52
8

0
53
,7
80

42
8

0
53
,8
80

52
8

0
H
ed
ge
la
nd
s 
N
ur
se
ry
 (
2)

23
,2
56

23
,2
56

23
,2
56

0
23
,2
56

0
0

23
,3
56

10
0

0
23
,2
56

0
0

23
,3
56

10
0

0
H
en
lo
w
 V
ill
ag
e 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

32
,8
32

32
,8
32

32
,8
32

0
32
,8
32

0
0

32
,9
32

10
0

0
32
,8
32

0
0

32
,9
32

10
0

0
H
oc
kl
iff
e 
S
tr
ee
t P

re
-s
ch
oo
l

15
,0
48

15
,0
48

15
,0
48

0
15
,1
91

14
3

0
15
,2
91

24
3

0
15
,1
91

14
3

0
15
,2
91

24
3

0
H
on
ey
su
ck
le
 N
ur
se
ry
 S
ch
oo
l

18
,4
68

18
,4
68

18
,4
68

0
18
,7
06

23
8

0
18
,8
06

33
8

0
18
,7
06

23
8

0
18
,8
06

33
8

0
Ic
kw

el
l P

re
-s
ch
oo
l

47
,8
80

47
,8
80

47
,8
80

0
47
,9
28

48
0

48
,0
28

14
8

0
47
,9
28

48
0

48
,0
28

14
8

0
K
en
sw

or
th
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

15
,0
48

15
,0
48

15
,0
48

0
15
,1
91

14
3

0
15
,2
91

24
3

0
15
,1
91

14
3

0
15
,2
91

24
3

0
La
dy
bi
rd
 P
re
-S
ch
oo
l

48
,9
06

48
,9
06

48
,9
06

0
48
,9
54

48
0

49
,0
54

14
8

0
48
,9
54

48
0

49
,0
54

14
8

0
Li
nd
en
 H
ou
se
 N
ur
se
ry

26
,3
34

26
,3
34

26
,3
34

0
26
,6
67

33
3

0
26
,7
67

43
3

0
26
,6
67

33
3

0
26
,7
67

43
3

0
Li
ns
la
de
 C
hi
ld
ca
re

33
,8
58

33
,8
58

33
,8
58

0
33
,9
06

48
0

34
,0
06

14
8

0
33
,9
06

48
0

34
,0
06

14
8

0
Li
ttl
e 
B
lu
eb
el
ls
 P
la
yg
ro
up

7,
18
2

7,
18
2

7,
18
2

0
7,
18
2

0
0

7,
28
2

10
0

0
7,
18
2

0
0

7,
28
2

10
0

0
Li
ttl
e 
H
av
en
 P
riv
at
e 
N
ur
se
ry

2,
39
4

2,
39
4

2,
39
4

0
2,
44
2

48
0

2,
54
2

14
8

0
2,
44
2

48
0

2,
54
2

14
8

0
Li
ttl
e 
Le
ar
ne
rs
 a
t K

in
gs
m
oo
r

33
,8
58

33
,8
58

33
,8
58

0
34
,2
86

42
8

0
34
,3
86

52
8

0
34
,2
86

42
8

0
34
,3
86

52
8

0
Li
ttl
e 
S
ta
rs
 N
ur
se
ry

9,
57
6

9,
57
6

9,
57
6

0
9,
67
1

95
0

9,
77
1

19
5

0
9,
67
1

95
0

9,
77
1

19
5

0
Lo
ve
rs
w
al
k 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

26
,6
76

26
,6
76

26
,6
76

0
27
,0
56

38
0

0
27
,1
56

48
0

0
27
,0
56

38
0

0
27
,1
56

48
0

0
M
au
ld
en
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l P

la
yg
ro
up

31
,8
06

31
,8
06

31
,8
06

0
31
,8
06

0
0

31
,9
06

10
0

0
31
,8
06

0
0

31
,9
06

10
0

0
M
en
tm
or
e 
R
oa
d 
U
nd
er
 5
's

17
,7
84

17
,7
84

17
,7
84

0
17
,7
84

0
0

17
,8
84

10
0

0
17
,7
84

0
0

17
,8
84

10
0

0
M
ep
pe
rs
ha
ll 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l P

la
yg
ro
up

34
,8
84

34
,8
84

34
,8
84

0
34
,8
84

0
0

34
,9
84

10
0

0
34
,8
84

0
0

34
,9
84

10
0

0
M
er
ry
 P
op
pe
ts
 N
ur
se
ry
 (
A
m
pt
hi
ll)

27
,7
02

27
,7
02

27
,7
02

0
27
,7
02

0
0

27
,8
02

10
0

0
27
,7
02

0
0

27
,8
02

10
0

0
M
er
ry
 P
op
pe
ts
 N
ur
se
ry
 (
F
lit
w
ic
k)

18
,4
68

18
,4
68

18
,4
68

0
18
,4
68

0
0

18
,5
68

10
0

0
18
,4
68

0
0

18
,5
68

10
0

0
M
in
i E

xp
lo
re
rs
 L
td

2,
39
4

2,
39
4

2,
39
4

0
2,
39
4

0
0

2,
49
4

10
0

0
2,
39
4

0
0

2,
49
4

10
0

0
M
og
ge
rh
an
ge
r 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

23
,5
98

23
,5
98

23
,5
98

0
23
,6
46

48
0

23
,7
46

14
8

0
23
,6
46

48
0

23
,7
46

14
8

0

4
E
:\m

od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
9\
1\
4\
A
I0
00
17
41
9\
04
C
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
B
ia
nd
B
iix
1x
0.
xl
s

Agenda Item 4
Page 38



S
u
m

m
ar

y 
o
f 
E

ar
ly

 Y
ea

rs
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 e

le
m

en
t 
o
n
ly

S
in

g
le

 F
u
n
d
in

g
 F

o
rm

u
la

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 R
ev

ie
w

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

(i
i)

T
O

T
A

L
 

(E
Y

 O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

T
O

T
A

L
 (E

Y
 

O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

T
O

T
A

L
 

(E
Y

 O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

T
O

T
A

L
 (E

Y
 

O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

P
ro

vi
d
er

 / 
S

et
ti
n
g

09
-1

0 
A

ct
u
al

 (
E

Y
 

O
n
ly

)

10
-1

1 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e 
(E

Y
 O

n
ly

)

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

 (
E

Y
 

O
n
ly

)

M
O

D
E

L
 D

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

 -
  T

o
ta

l 
M

F
G

M
O

D
E

L
 A

M
O

D
E

L
 B

M
O

D
E

L
 C

O
rc
ha
rd
 S
ch
oo
l &

 N
ur
se
ry

67
,0
32

67
,0
32

67
,0
32

0
67
,0
32

0
0

67
,1
32

10
0

0
67
,0
32

0
0

67
,1
32

10
0

0
O
S
C
A
R
 C
lu
b

38
,6
46

38
,6
46

38
,6
46

0
38
,6
94

48
0

38
,7
94

14
8

0
38
,6
94

48
0

38
,7
94

14
8

0
O
w
le
ts
 P
la
yg
ro
up

36
,5
94

36
,5
94

36
,5
94

0
36
,5
94

0
0

36
,6
94

10
0

0
36
,5
94

0
0

36
,6
94

10
0

0
P
ar
ks
id
e 
P
re
-S
ch
oo
l

8,
20
8

8,
20
8

8,
20
8

0
8,
63
6

42
8

0
8,
73
6

52
8

0
8,
63
6

42
8

0
8,
73
6

52
8

0
P
ho
en
ix
 S
ch
oo
l

26
,3
34

26
,3
34

26
,3
34

0
26
,3
34

0
0

26
,4
34

10
0

0
26
,3
34

0
0

26
,4
34

10
0

0
P
ip
pi
n 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

40
,3
56

40
,3
56

40
,3
56

0
40
,4
04

48
0

40
,5
04

14
8

0
40
,4
04

48
0

40
,5
04

14
8

0
P
op
pi
es
  N

ur
se
ry

97
,1
28

97
,1
28

97
,1
28

0
97
,2
23

95
0

97
,3
23

19
5

0
97
,2
23

95
0

97
,3
23

19
5

0
P
op
py
fie
ld
s 
N
ur
se
ry

10
,2
60

10
,2
60

10
,2
60

0
10
,2
60

0
0

10
,3
60

10
0

0
10
,2
60

0
0

10
,3
60

10
0

0
P
ot
to
n 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

47
,5
38

47
,5
38

47
,5
38

0
47
,5
38

0
0

47
,6
38

10
0

0
47
,5
38

0
0

47
,6
38

10
0

0
P
rio
ry
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

31
,8
06

31
,8
06

31
,8
06

0
32
,1
86

38
0

0
32
,2
86

48
0

0
32
,1
86

38
0

0
32
,2
86

48
0

0
P
ul
lo
xh
ill
 P
la
yg
ro
up

38
,3
04

38
,3
04

38
,3
04

0
38
,3
04

0
0

38
,4
04

10
0

0
38
,3
04

0
0

38
,4
04

10
0

0
R
A
F
 H
en
lo
w
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

33
,5
16

33
,5
16

33
,5
16

0
33
,5
16

0
0

33
,6
16

10
0

0
33
,5
16

0
0

33
,6
16

10
0

0
R
ai
nb
ow

 C
hi
ld
ca
re

27
,3
60

27
,3
60

27
,3
60

0
28
,0
25

66
5

0
28
,1
25

76
5

0
28
,0
25

66
5

0
28
,1
25

76
5

0
R
ai
nb
ow

 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

27
,7
02

27
,7
02

27
,7
02

0
27
,7
50

48
0

27
,8
50

14
8

0
27
,7
50

48
0

27
,8
50

14
8

0
S
am

ue
l W

hi
tb
re
ad
 N
ur
se
ry

43
,0
92

43
,0
92

43
,0
92

0
43
,2
35

14
3

0
43
,3
35

24
3

0
43
,2
35

14
3

0
43
,3
35

24
3

0
S
an
dy
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

15
,0
48

15
,0
48

15
,0
48

0
15
,2
38

19
0

0
15
,3
38

29
0

0
15
,2
38

19
0

0
15
,3
38

29
0

0
S
hi
lli
ng
to
n 
U
nd
er
 5
s

32
,8
32

32
,8
32

32
,8
32

0
32
,8
80

48
0

32
,9
80

14
8

0
32
,8
80

48
0

32
,9
80

14
8

0
S
ils
oe
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

35
,2
26

35
,2
26

35
,2
26

0
35
,2
74

48
0

35
,3
74

14
8

0
35
,2
74

48
0

35
,3
74

14
8

0
S
lip
 E
nd
 P
la
yg
ro
up

3,
42
0

3,
42
0

3,
42
0

0
3,
42
0

0
0

3,
52
0

10
0

0
3,
42
0

0
0

3,
52
0

10
0

0
S
ou
th
co
tt 
P
la
yg
ro
up

13
,6
80

13
,6
80

13
,6
80

0
13
,7
28

48
0

13
,8
28

14
8

0
13
,7
28

48
0

13
,8
28

14
8

0
S
ou
th
si
de
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l N

ur
se
ry
 L
td
.
50
,2
74

50
,2
74

50
,2
74

0
50
,6
07

33
3

0
50
,7
07

43
3

0
50
,6
07

33
3

0
50
,7
07

43
3

0
S
t C

hr
is
to
ph
er
's
 C
ar
e 
C
lu
b

70
,1
10

70
,1
10

70
,1
10

0
70
,2
05

95
0

70
,3
05

19
5

0
70
,2
05

95
0

70
,3
05

19
5

0
S
t F

ra
nc
is
 K
in
de
rg
ar
te
n

58
,1
40

58
,1
40

58
,1
40

0
58
,3
30

19
0

0
58
,4
30

29
0

0
58
,3
30

19
0

0
58
,4
30

29
0

0
S
t G

eo
rg
e'
s 
S
ch
oo
l

48
,2
22

48
,2
22

48
,2
22

0
49
,0
30

80
8

0
49
,1
30

90
8

0
49
,0
30

80
8

0
49
,1
30

90
8

0
S
t K

at
he
rin
e'
s 
P
la
yg
ro
up

4,
10
4

4,
10
4

4,
10
4

0
4,
10
4

0
0

4,
20
4

10
0

0
4,
10
4

0
0

4,
20
4

10
0

0
S
to
nd
on
 S
to
m
pe
rs
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

31
,1
22

31
,1
22

31
,1
22

0
31
,1
22

0
0

31
,2
22

10
0

0
31
,1
22

0
0

31
,2
22

10
0

0
S
tu
dh
am

 S
ch
oo
l P

re
-s
ch
oo
l

13
,3
38

13
,3
38

13
,3
38

0
13
,4
33

95
0

13
,5
33

19
5

0
13
,4
33

95
0

13
,5
33

19
5

0
T
ed
di
es
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

16
,0
74

16
,0
74

16
,0
74

0
16
,0
74

0
0

16
,1
74

10
0

0
16
,0
74

0
0

16
,1
74

10
0

0
T
he
 M
ar
y 
B
as
se
tt 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

53
,0
10

53
,0
10

53
,0
10

0
53
,5
80

57
0

0
53
,6
80

67
0

0
53
,5
80

57
0

0
53
,6
80

67
0

0
T
he
 W

oo
dl
an
ds

56
,4
30

56
,4
30

56
,4
30

0
56
,4
30

0
0

56
,5
30

10
0

0
56
,4
30

0
0

56
,5
30

10
0

0
T
ils
w
or
th
 M
on
te
ss
or
i S

ch
oo
l

15
,3
90

15
,3
90

15
,3
90

0
15
,3
90

0
0

15
,4
90

10
0

0
15
,3
90

0
0

15
,4
90

10
0

0
T
od
di
ng
to
n 
C
hi
ld
ca
re

36
,2
52

36
,2
52

36
,2
52

0
36
,2
52

0
0

36
,3
52

10
0

0
36
,2
52

0
0

36
,3
52

10
0

0
T
ot
te
rn
ho
e 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

14
,0
22

14
,0
22

14
,0
22

0
14
,0
70

48
0

14
,1
70

14
8

0
14
,0
70

48
0

14
,1
70

14
8

0
T
oy
bo
x 
D
ay
 N
ur
se
ry
 (
B
ig
gl
es
w
ad
e)
38
,3
04

38
,3
04

38
,3
04

0
38
,3
99

95
0

38
,4
99

19
5

0
38
,3
99

95
0

38
,4
99

19
5

0
T
oy
bo
x 
D
ay
 N
ur
se
ry
 (
S
an
dy
)

20
,5
20

20
,5
20

20
,5
20

0
20
,6
15

95
0

20
,7
15

19
5

0
20
,6
15

95
0

20
,7
15

19
5

0
T
ud
or
 C
ou
rt
 D
ay
 N
ur
se
ry

18
,4
68

18
,4
68

18
,4
68

0
18
,4
68

0
0

18
,5
68

10
0

0
18
,4
68

0
0

18
,5
68

10
0

0
T
w
in
kl
e 
P
la
yg
ro
up

6,
15
6

6,
15
6

6,
15
6

0
6,
48
9

33
3

0
6,
58
9

43
3

0
6,
48
9

33
3

0
6,
58
9

43
3

0
V
an
dy
ke
 R
oa
d 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

35
,5
68

35
,5
68

35
,5
68

0
36
,0
91

52
3

0
36
,1
91

62
3

0
36
,0
91

52
3

0
36
,1
91

62
3

0
W
at
lin
g 
F
or
es
t C

lu
b

32
,4
90

32
,4
90

32
,4
90

0
33
,0
13

52
3

0
33
,1
13

62
3

0
33
,0
13

52
3

0
33
,1
13

62
3

0
W
es
to
ni
ng
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

26
,3
34

26
,3
34

26
,3
34

0
26
,3
34

0
0

26
,4
34

10
0

0
26
,3
34

0
0

26
,4
34

10
0

0
W
in
dm

ill
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

36
,2
52

36
,2
52

36
,2
52

0
36
,3
00

48
0

36
,4
00

14
8

0
36
,3
00

48
0

36
,4
00

14
8

0
W
oo
de
nt
op
s 
P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

38
,6
46

38
,6
46

38
,6
46

0
38
,6
46

0
0

38
,7
46

10
0

0
38
,6
46

0
0

38
,7
46

10
0

0
W
re
st
lin
gw

or
th
 P
re
-s
ch
oo
l

13
,6
80

13
,6
80

13
,6
80

0
13
,6
80

0
0

13
,7
80

10
0

0
13
,6
80

0
0

13
,7
80

10
0

0
Z
ig
 Z
ag
 P
la
ys
ch
oo
l

27
,0
18

27
,0
18

27
,0
18

0
27
,0
18

0
0

27
,1
18

10
0

0
27
,0
18

0
0

27
,1
18

10
0

0
T
o
ta

l P
V

I
3,

54
7,

90
8

3,
54

7,
90

8
3,

54
7,

90
8

0
3,

56
2,

60
7

14
,6

99
0

3,
57

3,
10

7
25

,1
99

0
3,

56
2,

60
7

14
,6

99
0

3,
57

3,
10

7
25

,1
99

0

5
E
:\m

od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
9\
1\
4\
A
I0
00
17
41
9\
04
C
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
B
ia
nd
B
iix
1x
0.
xl
s

Agenda Item 4
Page 39



S
u
m

m
ar

y 
o
f 
E

ar
ly

 Y
ea

rs
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 e

le
m

en
t 
o
n
ly

S
in

g
le

 F
u
n
d
in

g
 F

o
rm

u
la

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 R
ev

ie
w

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

(i
i)

T
O

T
A

L
 

(E
Y

 O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

T
O

T
A

L
 (E

Y
 

O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

T
O

T
A

L
 

(E
Y

 O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

T
O

T
A

L
 (E

Y
 

O
N

L
Y

)

T
O

T
A

L
 

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

M
F
G

P
ro

vi
d
er

 / 
S

et
ti
n
g

09
-1

0 
A

ct
u
al

 (
E

Y
 

O
n
ly

)

10
-1

1 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e 
(E

Y
 O

n
ly

)

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

 (
E

Y
 

O
n
ly

)

M
O

D
E

L
 D

10
-1

1 
R

ec
al

c 
In

d
ic

 -
  T

o
ta

l 
M

F
G

M
O

D
E

L
 A

M
O

D
E

L
 B

M
O

D
E

L
 C

N
u
rs

er
y 

(4
)

1,
25

5,
59

4
1,

29
5,

51
6

1,
17

0,
63

2
18

2,
29

5
1,

19
6,

33
1

25
,6

99
32

9,
46

7
1,

20
1,

45
8

30
,8

26
36

7,
90

5
1,

16
7,

81
7

-2
,8

15
56

0,
95

5
1,

17
4,

74
1

4,
10

9
60

1,
19

0
L
o
w

er
s 

(9
6)

2,
16

3,
22

3
1,

94
7,

84
6

0
1,

62
6,

80
2

11
4,

75
8

0
1,

87
3,

26
6

24
6,

46
4

11
4,

25
8

0
1,

72
1,

35
0

94
,5

48
11

8,
85

0
0

1,
87

3,
26

6
24

6,
46

4
11

4,
25

8
0

1,
72

1,
35

0
94

,5
48

11
8,

85
0

P
V

I (
10

5)
3,

54
7,

90
8

3,
54

7,
90

8
3,

54
7,

90
8

0
3,

56
2,

60
7

14
,6

99
0

3,
57

3,
10

7
25

,1
99

0
3,

56
2,

60
7

14
,6

99
0

3,
57

3,
10

7
25

,1
99

0

S
u
b
 T

o
ta

l
6,

96
6,

72
5

6,
79

1,
27

0
0

6,
34

5,
34

3
29

7,
05

3
0

6,
63

2,
20

4
28

6,
86

2
44

3,
72

5
0

6,
49

5,
91

5
15

0,
57

2
48

6,
75

5
0

6,
60

3,
69

0
25

8,
34

7
67

5,
21

2
0

6,
46

9,
19

8
12

3,
85

6
72

0,
04

0

10
-1

1 
E

Y
 "

P
o
t"

7,
05

9,
93

2
7,

05
9,

93
2

7,
05

9,
93

2
7,

05
9,

93
2

7,
05

9,
93

2
7,

05
9,

93
2

C
o
n
ti
n
g
en

cy
.

26
8,

66
2

71
4,

58
9

42
7,

72
8

56
4,

01
7

45
6,

24
2

59
0,

73
4

C
o
m

m
en

ts
 t
o
 t
o
ta

l m
o
ve

m
en

ts
.

1
D

if
fe

re
n
t 
m

et
h
o
d
s 

o
f 
fu

n
d
in

g
10
-1
1 
R
ec
al
cu
la
te
 In
di
ca
tiv
e 
us
es
 A
W
P
U
 

N
ew

 E
Y
S
F
F
 u
se
s 
a 
ra
te
 p
er
 u
pt
ak
e 
ho
ur
.

2
D

if
fe

re
n
t 
m

et
h
o
d
s 

o
n
 c

al
cu

la
ti
n
g
 o

f 
A

d
d
it
io

n
al

 P
u
p
il 

L
ed

 f
u
n
d
in

g
10
-1
1 
R
ec
al
cu
la
te
d 
In
di
ca
tiv
e 
al
lo
ca
te
s 
an
 A
dd
 S
um

m
er
 T
er
m
 fu
nd
in
g 
fo
r 
3+

 a
nd
 3
+H

 w
er
e 
ap
pr
op
ria
te
.

N
ew

 E
Y
S
F
F
 h
ol
d 
th
is
 in
to
 c
on
tin
ge
nc
y 
po
t f
or
 d
is
tr
ib
ut
in
g 
te
rm

ly
.

10
-1
1 
R
ec
al
cu
la
te
 In
di
ca
tiv
e 
al
lo
ca
te
s 
a 
pe
r 
pu
pi
l r
at
e 
fo
r 
in
su
ra
nc
e 
fo
r 
3+

 a
nd
 3
+H

.
E
Y
S
F
F
 d
o 
no
t a
llo
ca
te
 a
ny
 in
su
ra
nc
e 
fo
r 
3+

 a
nd
 3
+H

.

3
D

if
fe

re
n
t 
m

et
h
o
d
s 

an
d
 d

at
a 

u
se

d
 t
o
 c

al
cu

la
te

 S
o
ci

al
 D

ep
ri

va
ti
o
n

10
-1
1 
R
ec
al
cu
la
te
 In
di
ca
tiv
e 
us
es
 A
C
O
R
N
 d
at
a 
an
d 
a 
th
re
sh
ol
d 
of
 2
0%

 fo
r 
ca
te
go
ry
 4
 a
nd
 5
 w
hi
ch
 a
re
 w
ei
gh
te
d 
1 
fo
r 
ca
te
go
ry
 4
 a
nd
 3
 fo
r 
ca
te
go
ry
 5
.

E
Y
S
F
F
 u
se
s 
ID
M
 d
at
a 
an
d 
us
es
 d
iff
er
en
t m

et
ho
d 
fo
r 
ca
lc
ul
at
in
g 
S
oc
ia
l D

ep
riv
at
io
n.

4
D

if
fe

re
n
t 
M

F
G

 
B
ec
au
se
 o
f t
he
 a
bo
ve
 d
iff
er
en
ce
s 
th
er
e 
w
ill
 (
w
er
e 
ap
pr
op
ria
te
) 
be
 d
iff
er
en
ce
s 
on
 M
F
G
 .

6
E
:\m

od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
9\
1\
4\
A
I0
00
17
41
9\
04
C
A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
B
ia
nd
B
iix
1x
0.
xl
s

Agenda Item 4
Page 40



 
 
Meeting: Schools Forum 

Date: 19 October 2009 

Subject: Use of Harnessing Technology funding to support 
transition to web based MIS in schools – additional 
information 
 

Report of: Acting Chief Executive/Deputy Chief Executive and Director of 
Children, Families and Learning 
 

Summary: To agree the use of Harnessing Technology funding to support transition 
to web MIS. 

 
 
Contact Officer: Cathy Piotrowski, ICT/MIS,  Learning & Support  

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Council 

Reason for urgency 
(if appropriate) 

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. 
 
 
 

To approve the recommendation that Harnessing Technology  
funding is used to support schools in the transition to a web based 
Management Information System (MIS).  

 
 
 Additional information requested by the Schools Forum at their meeting on 28 
September 2009. 
 
Why web MIS for schools? 
 
1. A number of advantages can be gained for both the schools and the local 

authority: 
 

• One pupil record containing all the required data in one place. 
 
• Improved consistency, uniformity and quality of data. 

 
• Data backups and upgrades are performed by the MIS supplier and not 

by the school. 
 

• No hardware required. 
 
• Remove the need for stand-alone systems such as Aspire to continue. 
 

Agenda Item 5
Page 41



 • More effective support as the problem can be accessed at the same time 
as the user. 

 
• Improved reporting and access to schools’ data by the Local Authority 

(LA). 
 

• Better platform for integrating data with the learning platform for reporting 
to pupils and parents (similarly for looking at potential integration with the 
LA’s central database). 

 
Funding and costs 
 
2. It is envisaged that an approximate cost of implementing a web MIS for Lower 

and Nursery schools will be in the region of £155K.  This will be funded from the 
centrally retained Harnessing Technology (HT) Grant which has come about 
from savings accrued through aggregated purchasing since April 2009.  
 

3. How the HT funding will be used (estimates): 
 

• Licences covering full suite of modules - £41K (one-off costs). 
 
• Data migration from existing MIS to web MIS - £20K (one-off costs). 

 
• 12 months hosting by the MIS supplier - £49K (this will include security of 

data). 
 

• First year annual support and maintenance - £45K. 
 

4. From the second year, annual support costs will transfer to the schools (as is 
currently the case).  An approximation of charges will be in the region of £1,095 
per lower school – this will include support on the pupil admin, attendance, 
behaviour and school census modules.  
 

 (Upper/Middle schools will need to use additional modules such as Exams & 
Timetabling and therefore approximate charges are unknown at the present 
time.) 
 

 (Current costs for Sims.net schools are as follows:  £1,000 Lowers/£1,500 
Middles per annum. Integris schools pay £755 for pupil admin, attendance and 
school census modules.) 
 

5. The MIS strategy proposes that a centrally provide LA support team continues 
and that the income generated from annual support charges is used to fund 
helpdesk resources. There will be a need however to review the provision when 
the Assessment module becomes operational. 
 

6. Note: A special local support arrangement had existed for Sims schools up until 
2004-05 after which Sims schools support was transferred to a national 
helpdesk. The LA had approached Capita in April 2007 requesting agreement 
for the LA to set up a local support team for Sims schools. This request was 
rejected on the basis that Capita felt it was not in the schools’ nor Capita’s best 
interests.  
 

Agenda Item 5
Page 42



 
Consultation feedback 
 
7. Feedback from discussions with schools can be grouped into four main strands: 

 
 1.  Connectivity:   Web MIS will need robust and resilient connectivity. Many 

schools have experienced poor connectivity in terms of slow speeds and 
resilience with the current infrastructure built around schools reliant upon 
other schools securing a link to the internet.  
 
This issue is being resolved this term with a thorough renewal of the network. 
Each school will have increased bandwidth and be routed through their own 
unique connection to an upgraded core exchange network. This work is due 
to be completed by the end of December 2009. The improved network 
infrastructure will support increased internet traffic as a result of increasing 
learning platform and web MIS use. 

 
 2. Who is paying?   There are a number of advantages for schools and the 

local authority in adopting web MIS for schools. Schools would not 
necessarily have budgeted for this change. There needs to be some incentive 
for schools to consider changing to a web MIS. 

 
 3. Require Central Support:  The need to move to a web MIS is generally 

acknowledged by schools as they understand and welcome the need to 
rationalise the various systems so that all data relating to the pupil is held in 
one place as the single data source. However, there is anxiety about the risk 
involved in a transition to another system after years of investment made to 
maintain their existing MIS and when the MIS is such a critical tool in day to 
day management information requirements and in producing the statutory 
termly census returns.  

 
Schools would expect the LA to establish a support team to manage the 
transition and provide a software development lead and helpdesk support.  

 
 4. Tried and tested web MIS alternative:  it is essential that any web MIS 

being considered would need to have been tried and tested (for reasons 
explained above). They would also need to have the full range of functionality 
that schools currently rely on.  

 
There are only three true web based MI systems currently on the market. Of 
these, one has developed an MIS for both primary and secondary; one has 
recently established a primary version and their secondary version is 
currently being piloted; and the third is not well known but established in a 
few primary and secondary schools. 
 

Online Reporting requirements 
 
8. This requirement falls within the government’s drive to improve parental 

engagement. The complete data set that needs to be reported covers 
attendance, behaviour, attainment and progress, and special educational needs 
where appropriate. 
 

Agenda Item 5
Page 43



 There is no prescribed methodology and schools are encouraged to consider 
using a number of different approaches – for example, text messaging can be 
used to communicate brief attendance information, emails can be used for 
general information to parents etc. A number of schools have already 
established these practices. 
 

9. Secondary schools are expected to have something in place by the end of 
December 2010 and Primary schools by the end of 2012. This requirement does 
not necessarily mean that the complete data set is reported online considering 
that MIS and learning platform software cannot all provide this functionality at 
the present time. 
 

10. The MIS strategy proposes a longer term objective that online reporting is 
achieved through the learning platform and that data integration between the 
web MIS and the learning platform and that the parental engagement work is 
supported and led by the local authority on behalf of all the schools. This 
recommendation follows Becta’s general principles for data integration and 
online reporting. 
 

11. It should be noted that online reporting of the prescribed data via the learning 
platform is not yet available as a ‘ready-made’ solution as interoperability 
between these systems does not yet exist. However, there is a national drive for 
interoperability (in both MIS and learning platforms) to become a standard 
requirement through the work of the Systems Interoperability Framework 
Association (SIFA) who are closely working with all MIS and learning platform 
suppliers in agreeing data transfer standards. 
 

12. There is time for the online reporting requirements to be achieved via the 
learning platform by the deadline of December 2012 for Primaries. Secondary 
schools however, will need to consider the many online reporting ‘solutions’ 
currently available on the market that would ‘link’ in with their existing MIS. A 
number of Secondary schools have already purchased or are currently 
researching the most appropriate and affordable option suited to their needs and 
existing MIS.  
 

 
 

Agenda Item 5
Page 44


	Agenda
	3 Surplus Balances
	03 Appendix 1A
	03 Surplus Meeting - 01 10 09 - Appendix B

	4 Early Years Single Funding Formula
	04A Early Years Oct 09 - Appendix A
	04B CBC SFF Consultation outcomes - Appendix A
	04C APPENDIX B(i)
	04C APPENDIX B(ii)

	5 Use of Harnessing Technology Funding to Support Transition to Web Based MIS in Schools - Additional Information

